FACTORS AFFECTIING E-LOYALTY TOWARDS ONLINE SHOPPING

PLATFORM IN BANGKOK THAILAND



FACTORS AFFECTIING E-LOYALTY TOWARDS ONLINE SHOPPING

PLATFORM IN BANGKOK THAILAND

Mo Yi

This Independent Study Manuscript Presented to

The Graduate School of Bangkok University

In Partial Fulfillment

of the Requirements for the Degree

Master of Business Administration

2017



©2017

Mo Yi

All Rights Reserved

This Independent Study has been approved by the Graduate School **Bangkok University**

Title: FACTORS AFFECTING E-LOYALTY TOWARDS ONLINE SHOPPING PLATFORM IN BANGKOK THAILAND

Mr. Mo Yi

Independent Study Committee:

Advisor

Author:

(Dr. Sumas Wongsunopparat)

Field Specialist

(Asst. Prof. Dr. Lokweepun Suprawan)

(Dr. Sansanee Thebpanya) Dean of the Graduate School December 14, 2017

MO, Y., M. B. A., September 2017. Graduate School, Bangkok University Factors affecting E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand (120 pp.)

Advisor: Sumas Wongsunopparat, Ph.D.

ABSTRACT

This research is to investigate the factors that affect E-loyalty towards online shopping platforms in Bangkok Thailand, to see whether and how "Web Design", "Technology", "Product and Value", "Service Quality", "Security and Trust" and "Brand Promoting Activities" influence the level of loyalty of online shoppers towards the online shopping platforms. This study is a quantitative research and survey strategy was adopted by using a self-administrated questionnaire to collect data. An online questionnaire using Google Drive was created to collect 402 valid respondents, cross tabulation and multinomial logistic regression were used as data analysis method. The result of the study shows that "Web Design", "Technology", "Product and Value", "Service Quality", "Security and Trust" and "Brand Promoting Activities" all have significant influences on e-loyalty of online shoppers towards online shopping platforms in Bangkok Thailand, detailed dimensions of each factors that affects e-loyalty were also revealed.

Keywords: E-Loyalty, Online Shopping Platform, Web Design, Technology, Product and Value, Service Quality, Security and Trust, Brand Promoting Activities

ACKNOWLEGEMENT

I would like to express my thankfulness to all people who have helped me in conducting this research paper. First and foremost, I would like to give the highest gratitude to my advisor Dr. Sumas Wongsunopparat, who has spent his precious time for consultation on planning, conducting and writing this research paper, his encouragement during this whole process really means a lot to me, and his professional advices inspired me.

I would also like to thank all experts, Miss. Wanida Manaletsamrith, Mr. Perry Ye, Miss. Sawanya Pipatpaisarn, Miss. Rawiwan Horinouchi and Miss. Narisara Udomkitmongkol, who kindly helped me for the validity survey.

I appreciate all respondents who were involved in the questionnaires for data collection. Without their cooperation, this research cannot be completed successfully.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

vi

ABSTRACT	iv
ACKNOWLEGEMENT	v
LIST OF TABLES	ix
LIST OF FIGURES	x
CHAPTER 1:INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Rationale and Problem Statement	1
1.1.1 Background	1
1.1.2 Problem Statement	2
1.2 Objectives of Study	6
1.2.1 Research Objective	6
1.2.2 Research questions	6
1.2.3 Scope of Research	7
1.2.4 Research Assumptions	8
1.2.5 Research Limitation	9
1.3 Contribution of Study	9
CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW	11
2.1 Related Theories and Previous Studies	11
2.1.1 Rational Choice Theory	11
2.1.2 Brand Choice Models	12
2.1.3 Loyalty in traditional consumer market	15

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW (Continued)
2.1.4 Loyalty in E-Commerce Consumer Market
2.1.5 Previous Studies on E-Loyalty
2.2 Hypothesis (es)
2.3 Conceptual Framework
CHAPTER 3: METHODOLOGY
3.1 Research Design
3.1.1 Research Philosophy
3.1.2 Research Approach
3.1.3 Research Design
3.2 Population and Sample Selection
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size 40 3.2.2 Sampling techniques 41 3.3 Research Instrument 42
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size 40 3.2.2 Sampling techniques 41 3.3 Research Instrument 42 3.3.1 Questionnaire Design 42
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size403.2.2 Sampling techniques413.3 Research Instrument423.3.1 Questionnaire Design423.3.2 Operationalization45
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size403.2.2 Sampling techniques413.3 Research Instrument423.3.1 Questionnaire Design423.3.2 Operationalization453.4 Reliability and Content Validity48
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size403.2.2 Sampling techniques413.3 Research Instrument423.3.1 Questionnaire Design423.3.2 Operationalization453.4 Reliability and Content Validity483.4.1 Content Validity Test48
3.2.1 Population and Sample Size403.2.2 Sampling techniques413.3 Research Instrument423.3.1 Questionnaire Design423.3.2 Operationalization453.4 Reliability and Content Validity483.4.1 Content Validity Test483.4.2 Reliability Test49

page

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

	page
CHAPTER 4: RESEARCH RESULTS	55
4.1 Summary of Demographic Data	55
4.2 Results of Research Variables	59
4.3 Results of Hypothesis Testing	71
4.4 Summary of Hypothesis Testing	76
CHAPTER 5: DISCUSSION	78
5.1 Research Findings and Conclusion	78
5.1.1 Research Findings of Hypotheses Testing	78
5.1.2 Customer profiling analysis findings of each brand	79
5.2 Discussion	80
5.3 Recommendation for Managerial Implication	83
5.4 Recomendation for Further Research	84
BIBLIOGRAPHY	86
APPENDIX	104
BIODATA	120
LICENCE AGREEMENT	

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: Influential empirical studies on E-Loyalty	
Table 2: Operationalization of research variables	
Table 3: Criteria of Reliability Result	
Table 4: Reliability Test Result	
Table 5: Demographic data of respondents	
Table 6: Results of loyal shopping platform	60
Table 7: Categories of most shopped products	61
Table 8: Summary of answers to questions of variables	62
Table 9: Crosstabulation between gender and loyal website	63
Table 10: Crosstabulation between age and loyal website	64
Table 11: Crosstabulation between income and loyal website	66
Table 12: Crosstabulation between education and loyal website	67
Table 13: Crosstabulation between shopping frequency and loyal website	68
Table 14: Crosstabulation between marriage status and loyal website	70
Table 15: Multinomial Logistic Regression Results	71

Page

LIST OF FIGURES

х

Figure 1: Research Model	33
Figure 2: Research Onion	34
Figure 3: Method ology Summary	54
Figure 4: Respondents Gender	56
Figure 5: Respondents Age	56
Figure 6: Respondents Income	57
Figure 7: Respondents Education	
Figure 8: Respondents Shopping Frequency	58
Figure 9: Respondents Marriage Status	58
Figure 10: Respondents' choice of loyal online shopping platform	60
Figure 11: Categories of most shopped products	61
Figure 12: Crosstabulation between gender and loyal website	63
Figure 13: Crosstabulation between age and loyal website	65
Figure 14: Crosstabulation between income and loyal website	66
Figure 15: Crosstabulation between education and loyal website	68
Figure 16: Crosstabulation between shopping frequency and loyal website	69
Figure 17: Crosstabulation between marriage status and loyal website	70

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Rationale and Problem Statement

1.1.1 Background

Internet as an infrastructure has offered companies a new environment to conduct their economic activities, within which companies can accomplish transaction with their customers online, this is called electronic commerce (Janson & Cecez-Kecmanovic, 2005).

Nowadays, electronic commerce plays an important role in Thailand's modernday economy and its economic growth. According to Electronic Transactions Development Agency (ETDA, 2016), an e-commerce agency under the Thai Ministry of Digital Economy and Society, the total value of e-commerce in Thailand is 2,245,147.02 million Baht in 2015, with a 10.41% increase from 2014, in which the total value of e-commerce is 2,033,439.35 million Baht. This number increase 12.42% to a total value 2,523,994.46 million Baht in 2016. In the year 2016, value of ecommerce consists of 40.08% of the total value of products and services sold.

Statistics of total E-Commerce value of ETDA is consisted of three types of transaction, business to business(B2B), business to government(B2G) and business to consumer(B2C). Among them, total value of B2C is 509,998.39 million Bath in the year 2015, and this number jumps nearly 43% to 729,292.32 million Baht in the year 2016. This B2C E-Commerce statistic data shows clearly that online retailing has become increasingly popular, and it supports Chang et al. (2009)'s view that online retailing has become a preferred shopping method among consumers.

The rapid growth of Thailand's B2C e-commerce market will logically increase the competition between companies involved in this line of business. Comparing making effort to acquire new customers, remaining the existing customer is a more effective way to gain a competitive advantage against competitors, a five percent increase in the amount of loyal customer in a business will lead to a 30 to 85% increase in profitability (Reichheld & Sasser 1990).

1.1.2 Problem Statement

Sekaran and Bougie (2014) defined problem statement as an "unambiguous, specific and focused" statement that help researchers to narrow down the original problem from its broad base by means of gathering the background information of an organization and its environment or by reviewing previous literature. Clear research objectives and research questions are included in a good problem statement.

"How market practitioners in e-commerce B2C market can effectively maintain their customers under the background of fierce competition" is a broad problem that the researcher of this paper would to narrow down, and address in a more specific academic perspective. In order to do that, a preliminary literature review is conducted, and then the research objective and research questions of this paper are brought out.

In e-commerce B2C market, online shopping has obvious advantage against traditional offline shopping. Consumers can benefit from the advance of internet for its constant and global availability, they can find a much wider range of products and service compared with what they can find at a traditional department store or supermarket, and the purchase can be made everywhere at any time (Pratminingsih et al. 2013). Besides, online shopper can receive the goods at home or office or any other location that are convenient form them (Alam & Yasin, 2010; Buchalis, 2004), these are all factors the encourage consumer transfer from a traditional offline marketplace to an online marketplace.

On the other hand, however, despite the fact that online shopping brings a lot of convenience to consumers, there are still enough uncertainty that make consumers reluctant to purchase online, such as uncertainty of product quality, uncertainty of payment security, worries about information privacy, after sales service and trust (Alam & Yasin, 2010; Buchalis, 2004; Chen, 2006). The fact that online shoppers do not have direct contact with products they intend to buy, and that they need to offer personal information to the seller increase the perceived risk of online shopper. Thus, trust is important (Reichheld & Schefter, 2000) and lack of trust may lead to consumer's avoidance of e-vendors (Gefen et al, 2003).

Due to the above advantage and disadvantage of online shopping, acquiring and retaining customers on the context of electronic commerce has drawn rich attention from marketing researchers (Stamenkov & Dika, 2015; Santos, 2003; Ribbink et al., 2004; Cristobal, et al., 2007; Sanchez Torres & Arroyo-Cañada, 2017; Lin et al., 2016; Myunghee & Miyoung, 2017; Kassim & Ismail, 2009; Khan & Rahman, 2014). Among these researches, customer loyalty has always been an important topic.

Loyalty has been an important theme for marketing researchers because it helps companies to establish and maintains competitive advantages, no matter it is in traditional consumer market or in the context of electronic commerce (Gommans, et al., 2001). Reichheld and Sasser (1990) suggested that a five percent increase in the amount of loyal customer in a business will lead to a 30 to 85% increase in profitability. Reichheld (1996) has also suggested that a brand which has strongly loyal customers has a lot of advantages in traditional market, such as maintaining high price, bargaining power with distribution channels, lower selling cost, stronger barrier for preventing new players to enter the product/service category. In electronic commerce context, it is even more true that business survival is crucially relied on customer loyalty (Reichheld & Schefter, 2000), because the competition is simply a "mouse click away" (Semeijn et al., 2005).

In traditional consumer market, customer loyalty has been extensively discussed in various industries, these researches have covered the definition, antecedents and consequences of customer loyalty. A conceptual framework of brand loyalty was brought out by Oliver (1997), according to which the formation of loyalty includes successive stages of recognition (loyalty to information such as price, characteristics), effect (loyalty to interests), effort (loyalty to tendency) and action (loyalty to action). Oliver (1999) defined loyalty as: "a deeply held commitment to rebuy or re-patronize a preferred product/service consistently in the future, thereby causing repetitive samebrand or same brand-set purchasing, despite situational influences and marketing efforts having the potential to cause switching behavior." Alexandris et al. (2008) discover that five dimensions of the eight brand associations (escape, nostalgia, pride, logo, and affect) significantly contributed to the prediction of loyalty s in the context of a fitness club. Kursunluoglu (2014) analyzed the dimension of customer service and its effect on customer satisfaction and customer loyalty towards shopping center. Nguyen et al. (2011) has discovered positive relation between perceived quality and brand loyalty in both Thailand and Vietnam.

The concept of brand/customer loyalty has been extended to the context of electronic commerce due to the development and internet, and it is retitled as Eloyalty. (Khan & Rahman, 2016). The concept of E-loyalty has been described or defined by different researchers. According Schultz (2000), traditional brand/customer loyalty is a "product driven, marketer controlled" concept while Eloyalty is a "distribution driven, consumer controlled, and technology-facilitated" concept. Chang et al. (2009) refers e-loyalty to "a commitment of repeatedly buying a preferred product/service and positive word of mouth consistently in the future". Cyr et al. (2008) defined e-loyalty as a commitment to revisit a brand's website consistently for shopping on that website without switching to other websites. Corstjens & Lal (2000) compares E-loyalty to store loyalty as attracting consumers to revisit the store and repurchase in the store.

Antecedents and consequences of E-loyalty has also been extensively studied. According to Reichheld & Schefter (2000), good customer support, fast delivery, information quality, effective fulfillment, private information protection affects customer loyalty towards a brand's website. Azam (2015) believes that trust is a key driver of loyalty. Loyal customer could bring new customer by posting their positive comments online. (Yun & Good, 2007; Reichheld & Schefter, 2000).

The efforts to retain existing customer is actually trying to increase customer loyalty. Therefore, the problem of how practitioners can retain their customer can be re-stated in a specific and academic perspective as how to increase the online shopper's loyalty towards an online shopping platform. Despite the fact the extensive studies have been conducted on the issue of e-loyalty, empirical research on factors affect online shopper's E-loyalty towards an online shopping platform in Thailand is still limited. Therefore, based on previous studies on E-loyalty, this research paper aims to empirically discover the factors that affects E-loyalty towards online shoppers' E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Thailand.

1.2 Objectives of Study

1.2.1 Research Objective

A research objective explains the reason why the research is to be done. Basic business research is to expand general knowledge while applied research is to solve a specific problem (Sekaran & Bougie, 2014).

As per our previous discussion, a problem encountered by practitioners in Thailand's e-commerce B2C market is that how they can increase their customer's loyalty towards their online shopping platform. Therefore, based on Oliver's (1999) basic theory about loyalty in traditional market, the purpose of this study is to empirically detect and test the possible factors that may affect online shoppers' loyalty towards to online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand, in order to offer insight to marketing practitioners how to build up a loyal customer base and gain competitive advantages.

1.2.2 Research questions

Research questions translate the problem faced by organizations or researchers into a specific information need, it specifies what is to be learned about the research topic. (Sekaran & Bougie, 2014).

The research topic of this paper is factors that affect online shopper's loyalty towards the online shopping platform. Thus, the research questions are designed as below:

 Do "Web Design" "Technology" "Product & Value" "Service Quality"
"Security & Trust" "Brand Promoting" affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform?

2. Do elements of "Web Design" affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform?

3. Do elements of "Technology" affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform?

4. Do elements of "Product & Value" affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform?

5. Do elements of "Service Quality" affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform?

6. Do elements of "Security & Trust" affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform?

7. Do elements of "Brand Promoting" affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform?

1.2.3 Scope of Research

The scope of study is the domain of the research, it specifies what parameters are in the domain and what is not. It is closely related to the frame of problem and thus it is necessary to be clear that what parameters are within the accepted range of study and what are not (Simon and Goes, 2013).

Scope of Content

The research is to identify the determining factors of online shoppers' loyalty towards the online shopping platform in Thailand in the context of e-commerce B2C market. Adopting positivism as the research philosophy, the author used quantitative method to collect data.

Scope of Demographic, Samples and Location

The author identified population and samples as online shoppers who has at least once of online shopping experience in Bangkok, Thailand, furthermore target respondents were picked randomly.

1.2.4 Research Assumptions

Research Assumptions are beliefs which are necessary to conduct the research but cannot be proved (Simon & Goes, 2013). These beliefs are beyond control of the research, yet they cannot be ignored (Simon, 2011).

This research assumes that:

1. All the respondents understand all questions in questionnaires.

2. All the respondents will answer honestly.

Explanation on how anonymity and confidentiality of participants is protected will be made in order to increase the accuracy of answers.

1.2.5 Research Limitation

Limitations are constraints that researchers are not able to control, but the constrains could have influenced on the result of the research. Types of limitation of a research varies with the methodology and study design of that research (Simon & Goes, 2013).

Considering the limited time and research budget, this research uses a quantitative method to collect data by using self-administered questionnaire, it studies the online shopper's loyalty towards online shopping platform in the context of e-commerce B2C market. The samples are limited online shoppers' in Bangkok, Thailand, and the. Therefore, the outcome of this research cannot be applied to B2B market, nor it can be applied in any other countries outside Thailand.

1.3 Contribution of Study

This research empirically detects and tests the possible factors that may affect online shoppers' loyalty towards to online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand, it offers insights for marketing practitioners in e-commerce B2C market in Thailand to understand how to build up a loyal customer base, it also guides them to make better plan and marketing strategies retain their existing customer in order to gain competitive advantages. Furthermore, this research contributes to the literature of online shopping loyalty in the context of e-commerce B2C market in Thailand, the result can be used as references for further study.



CHAPTER 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Related Theories and Previous Studies

2.1.1 Rational Choice Theory

Rational choice theory, also called choice theory or rational action theory, is a framework used to understand and to model social and economic behavior. (Durlauf and Blume, 2008). This theory is based on its basic presupposition that integrated social behavior is the results of individual actors' behavior, each of whom make their own decisions. This theory also focuses on the factors that determine the individual choices.

Rational choice theory assumes that individual has complete and transitive preferences among all the available alternatives. Completeness of preference refers that an individual person can always choose which of two options are preferred or that neither of the two is preferred to another, transition of preference means if an individual person prefer options A to option B, and option B is preferred over option C, then this person prefers A to C. In the formation of preferences, available information, probabilities, cost and benefits are assumed to be taken into consideration by rational agent, the action of who is consistent with his/her choice.

Both the abstract norms that governs human rationality and the rules that can explain and predict outcomes of rational choice are included in the study of rational choice theory (Amadae, 2016). There are two views on rational choice theory, one considers that this theory is simply a descriptive means to predict the outcomes human behavior and the pattern or human choices without considering the formation of choice process, another view on the contrary, argues that it actually describes the rules for human to make decisions. Researchers who hold the first view generally predict actions and outcomes by using the rational choice axioms but not suggest anything about the internal decision process of the rational actors, while the second view upholders believe that the purposive action of rational agents is in line with the behavioral norms of rational choice which explains the foundations to make rational decision. Even if the first view is enough to understand and model social and political behavior, yet many researchers still use rational choice theory as a powerful tool to study internal mechanism of purposive actions of rational agency.

2.1.2 Brand Choice Models

Brand choice theory is the fundamental to marketing science. (Russell, 2014) All marketing managers concerns about the decision process of consumers and the impact that strategic marketing variables (such as product, price, promotion and distribution) have on this decision process. Therefore, brand choice researches seek to model the consumers' choice behavior and use these models to forecasts future choice behavior of consumers.

Brand choice models is based on the key assumptions about how purchase decisions are made (Russell, 2014). However, being different from psychological researches in marketing science which studied the mechanism of human brains when making decisions, studies about choice modeling theory focus on choice behavior to understand the impact of environmental influences (such as the marketing mix) on choice decisions (Simon, 1969). In these section, the choice models that significantly affect the history of brand choice theory will be reviewed. Thurstone Model and Random Utility Model

The study of brand choice started with Thurstone (1927), who argued that the perception of human towards the same stimulus under different circumstances will not be the same. Russell (2014) use the following equation to express Thurstone model in a mathematical fasion:

 $U_i = V_i + e_i$

Where U_i is the sensational intensity which is percived by individual, V_i is the true intensity while e_i is the normally distributed ramdom variables. In a brand choice setting, V_i represents the individuals' consistant average preference value for a curtain alternative, e_i is a random effect that which affect the percived preference (U_i) in that specifc situation and the true value of consistant average preference (V_i). And the choice rule of Thurstone is simple: individual select alternative with higher percived preference (U_i).

Subsequent researchers in marketing following Thurstone (1927) assume that the alternative with highest perceived U_i will always been selected by consumers. This choice rule to select the maximum U_i from a set of random generated U_i is called random utility theory (RUT). According to Train (2013), probabilities of choice in RUT model can be obtained by firstly writing down the N-dimensional multivariate distribution defined the equation $U_i = V_i + e_i$, and then computing the probability by formula $Pr_i = Pr \{U_i = max [U_i, ..., U_N]\}$.

Luce (1959) proposed another choice theory model, which takes the form:

 $\Pr_{i/S}/\Pr_{j/S} = \Pr_{i|S^*}/\Pr_{j|S^*}$

Where, $Pr_{i|S}$ is the probability of item I being selected from a set of alternatives S, which includes both item i and another item j, S* is another set of alternative items which also include both i and j. In words, the Luce's Choice Axiom argues that the ratio of choice probabilities of an alternative is a fixed quantity which is not related the choice set.

Luce (1959) made an expression for the choice probabilities of Choice Axiom as follow:

 $\Pr_{i/S} = Q_i / \{Q_1 + \ldots + Q_N\}$

Where Q_i is the preference value for item "i". The probability function in this equation is called logit choice model. Yellott (1977) revealed that logit choice probabilities are consistent with a RUT model.

Tversky Models

Tversky (1972) proposed the Elimination by Aspects (EBA) model, which is a choice process based on a lexicographic choice rule. EBA model states that all the choice alternatives contain aspects (characteristics) that can help individuals to eliminate alternatives from the alternatives set until the last alternative left. Russell (2014) states that EBA can be consider as a generalized Luce choice model and is consistent with RUT, and this model inspired considerable subsequent researches on multi-attribute utility models and consideration set formation.

Prospect Theory

Kahnemann and Tversky (1979) proposed Prospect Theory, which assumes that individuals first build up a reference point (forecast), and then compare the alternatives with this reference point and evaluate the losses or gains. Individuals' sensational intensity of pain from losses will be stronger than happiness gaining the same amount of utility, and therefore higher level of risk averse can be observed when facing losses.

2.1.3 Loyalty in traditional consumer market Definition of Loyalty

According to Afsar, Nasiri and Zadeh (2013), the concept of loyalty first come out in early decade of 1940. There have been two kinds of views upon the loyalty concept (Saura, Francés, Contrí & Blasco, 2008). One view defines loyalty simply as the repeat purchase behavior. Under this point of view, loyalty was understood as repeat purchase behavior (Bass, 1974). Buttle and Burton (2002) advocate that "a customer who continues to buy is a loyal customer".

Following that, another point of view emerged believes that attitude element should be consider when studying loyalty. Jacob and Chestnut (1978) made effort to get insight of the psychological element of loyalty and discovered that consistent purchasing the same brand of product could be simply because of convenience or limited choices, and that inconsistent buying could be because of the multi-brand loyalty of consumers. Thus, the authors conclude that it would not be wise to predict customer loyalty solely based on the repetitive purchase behavior of consumers, attitudinal elements such as belief, affect and intention of a consumer should be taken into consideration when studying loyalty.

Dick and Basu (1994) explained loyalty in a cognition-affect-conation pattern. The authors pointed out that if a consumer is truly loyal to a brand, he should present preference to a focal brand during the whole process of decision making. That is, this consumer should prefer the brand attribute to other competitive alternatives (cognition), he should be more affectively attached to this brand (attitude), and have higher intention (conation) to purchase this brand comparing with other alternative brands.

Based on this cognition-affect-conation pattern, Oliver (1997) extended the formation of loyalty to a four-stage model by including actual behavior dimension: cognitive loyalty, affective loyalty, conative loyalty and action loyalty. Oliver (1999) defined loyalty as "a deeply held commitment to rebuy or re-patronize a preferred product or service consistently in the future, thereby causing repetitive same-brand or same brand-set purchasing, despite situational influences and marketing efforts that have the potential to cause switching behavior". He argued that a consumer can become loyal at each attitudinal stage consecutively over time. At each different stage, loyalty is influenced by different factors. For example, brand attribution information such as price, quality will make consumer become loyal at cognitive sense, this consumer will then become affectively loyal after satisfied experience with the brand, which will trigger his conative loyal sense (intention to repurchase), finally this loyalty will appear in a behavioral manner (repurchase action).

Oliver's four-stage theory of loyalty

It is worthy to take a deep look into each stage of loyalty of Oliver's (1997) fourstage model in order to understand what factors can affect loyalty at different stage.

Cognitive Loyalty

At the first stage, attribute information related to a brand, such as price, quality and so on, will determine the consumer preference to other alternative offering. Cognitive loyalty is based only on beliefs of a specific brand, such as knowledges or information like product cost, benefits, reputation etc. Therefore, if consumers perceive an alternative offering with a better cost-benefit ratio, they are likely to switch to other brands (Kalyanaram & Little 1994; Sivakumar & Raj 1997). Experience evaluation will influence loyalty at cognition stage, especially evaluation on whether the perceived performance is worthy with the price they pay (value) (Blut et al., 2007). Cognitive loyalty is superficial, when a transaction is routinely processed without reaching consumer satisfaction, the depth of loyalty will not get deeper or even disappear, whereas satisfied transactions may become the consumer's experience and transfer the loyalty to the next level.

Affective Loyalty

At the second stage of loyalty, previous cumulative satisfied experience of consumers will generate favorable attitude or liking towards a specific brand.

Confirmation of consumer's expectation will lead to satisfaction, which is defined by Oliver (1997) as "the consumer's fulfillment response, the degree to which the level of fulfillment is pleasant or unpleasant." Therefore, affective loyalty is a result of "pleasure fulfillment"-the pleasure dimension of satisfaction. At this stage, loyalty is exhibited in the form of affection or liking towards the brand itself, not just preference to the attribute information or knowledge, it is therefore stronger than the previous stage. However, similar to loyalty in cognitive stage, affective loyalty is still subject to switching if the attractiveness of competitive brands increase. (Sambandam and Lord 1995). It is therefore desirable to effectuate the affective loyalty to the next stage (Oliver, 1999).

Conative Loyalty

Conative loyalty is the intention of action to repurchase a specific brand, it is a result accumulated from repeated experience of positive affect towards a specific brand, thus it is stronger than affective loyalty (Oliver, 1999). However, conative loyalty is intention to action instead of actual action, it still has vulnerabilities. Repeated service failures will make consumers turn to other alternative offerings (Blut et al., 2007).

Action Loyalty

Kuhl and Beckmann (1985) refer the process that intentions are transformed into action as "action control". According to the sequence of action control, the three previous stage of loyalty is then transformed into readiness of action, which is accompanied by additional willingness to overcome obstacles that prevent consumers from taking action, such as willing to make considerable effort to search for the favorite offering and ignore the competitive alternative offerings.

Readiness to act and overcoming obstacles are two action control constructs, readiness to act in the definition of loyalty is "a deeply held commitment to rebuy or re-patronize a preferred product or service consistently in the future", while overcoming obstacles is the action of rebuying "despite situational influences and marketing efforts that have the potential to cause switching behavior" (Oliver, 1999).

Although being extensively studied, the definition of loyalty was not able to come to an universal agreement (Dick & Basu 1994; Jacob & Chestnut 1978; Oliver 1999; Uncles, Dowling & Hammond 2003). Three conceptualizations are popular: loyalty as an attitudinal connection between consumers and the brand; loyalty in the point of view as consumer behavior; and loyalty moderated by the individual's traits, circumstances and situations. (Uncles et al., 2003)

2.1.4 Loyalty in E-Commerce Consumer Market

Concept of E-Loyalty

In the context of e-commerce, extended from the traditional concept of loyalty, online consumer's loyalty is called e-loyalty. Consumer's loyalty in cyberspace has be transferred from a product driven, marketer controlled concept to a distribution driven, consumer controlled and technology facilitated concept (Schultz, 2000). Corstjens and Lal (2000) compared e-loyalty to store loyalty, as attracting consumers to revisit a website and establishing brand name items in that website is similar to building store loyalty. Anderson and Srinivasan (2003) has defined loyalty in ecommerce context as consumer's favorable attitude towards online retailers which will lead to repeat purchasing.

Even though the traditional loyalty and e-loyalty share the same theoretical foundations, there are unique aspects of it with regards to the online marketing activities and online consumer behavior. The following sections will discuss the similarity and differences between traditional loyalty and e-loyalty.

Traditional Loyalty vs E-Loyalty

Attitudinal Loyalty

In the traditional consumer market, attitudinal loyalty includes the first three stage: cognition, affection, and conation (behavioral intention). Development of traditional loyalty for these three types of loyalty mainly relies on efforts made upon brand image building, through mass media communications (advertisements). In e-marketplaces, however, with the help database technology and advanced algorithm, it is possible to offer customized information to consumers according to their personal demands and preferences, this helps to more effectively built cognitive loyalty with much lower cost. With regards to the affective dimension of loyalty, due to the fact the consumers do not have direct contact with either the products or the e-retailers who sell the products, issues such as trust, security, privacy needs to be highlighted in e-commerce context (Gommans, et al., 2001).

As discussed previously, satisfaction is an important antecedent of affective loyalty. But the link between satisfaction and loyalty is asymmetric, loyalty consumers must be satisfied, but satisfied consumers may not necessarily be loyal (Oliver, 1999). Understanding this phenomenon is especially important for marketers in e-commerce business, because consumers who have dissatisfied experience can easily switch to alternative offerings with a simple click (Gommans, et al., 2001).

Mittal and Kamakura (2001) consider behavioral intension as an intermediate state between attitude and actual action. Representing the intention to take a buying action in decision making process, behavioral intention can appear in different forms, such as a tendency to make the first purchase of a brand or a commitment to re-buy the current brand. Marketing researches on conventional loyalty mainly studied how to maintain and strengthen this commitment (Oliva & Oliver, 1992) and how to transform it to purchase action (Kuhl & Beckmann, 1985), while on e-loyalty the main focus is on converting intention to immediate buying action (Strauss & Frost, 2001).

Behavioral Loyalty

In traditional consumer market, behavioral loyalty has been defined as repeat buying behavior (Chaudhuri & Holbrook, 2001; Dick & Basu, 1994). Consumer can be behaviorally loyal to a specific brand, or to a store, as the concept of store loyalty being discussed in Corstjens and Lal (2000). In online e-commerce market, both the conceptualization and measurement of behavioral loyalty become more complicated. Factors such as repeat visit to an e-commerce website without purchase or time spending one browsing that site should be taken into consideration (Smith, 2000). Satisfaction is very important to create behavioral loyalty (Schultz, 2000). Comparing with consumers whose purchase decision is made due to time restrictions or limited information, satisfied customer will be more loyal to a brand/store. In the context of e-commerce, where consumers shop online, more attention needs to be put on efforts trying to satisfy consumers if an e-commerce website wish to retain their customers, because information become more symmetrical comparing with conventional market, customers can easily collect a large amount of information and they have adequate time to make decision. Therefore, behavioral loyalty become more complicated and more difficult to achieve in cyberspace than in traditional market (Gommans, et al., 2001).

2.1.5 Previous Studies on E-Loyalty

E-Satisfaction and E-Loyalty

Satisfaction is considered to be a direct antecedent in a lot of research papers (Oliver ,1997; Anderson & Srinivasan, 2003; Semeijn et al., 2005; Pratminingsih et al. 2013). Oliver (1997) defined satisfaction "the consumer's fulfillment response, the degree to which the level of fulfillment is pleasant or unpleasant". Satisfaction is also viewed as affective response to buying situation (Bagozzi, Gopinath & Nyer, 1999). Fournier and Mick (1999) consider satisfaction as an active and dynamic process which contains social dimension, emotions and contextual factors. There are two types of conceptualizations of customer satisfaction from previous studies: transaction-specific satisfaction and cumulative satisfaction (Anderson, 1973; Anderson, Fornell & Lehmann, 1994; Fornell, 1992). The transaction-specific views consider satisfaction to be an evaluative judgment of a specific transaction after customer made a purchase choice (Anderson, 1973). In comparison, cumulative satisfaction is consumers' general evaluation for the goods or services of a specific company that they have experienced over time (Oliver, 1980). Anderson and Srinivasan (2003) defined customer satisfaction as a stage the contentment of customer for their previous experience of purchasing from a given e-commerce firm.

Flavián et al. (2006) discovered a positive link between satisfaction and E-Loyalty, and this link is moderated by inertia, convenience motivation and size of purchase. This link was later observed between countries and cultures (Christodoulides & Michaelidou 2010). But there are also a minority of researchers finding weak relationship between satisfaction and loyalty (Taylor & Hunter 2003). For example, Dai, Salam and King (2008) discover that the effect of satisfaction on customer loyalty is weak.

E-Trust/E-security and E-Loyalty

Trust is another important antecedent of E-loyalty which have positive effect on online shopper's intention to buy or continuously buy from the same website or the same e-vendor (Milne & Boza 1999; Singh & Sirdeshmukh 2000). There are two kinds of perspectives to view trust, one is to view trust as trusting beliefs (Doney and Cannon, 1997; Gefen and Silver, 1999; Gefen et al., 2003) and the other view trust as trusting intention (Hosmer, 1995; Moorman et al., 1992; Mayer et al., 1995). Trust beliefs is the consumer's perceptions towards the e-vender's attributes which is demonstrated during the process of handling consumer's transactions, these attributes include vender's abilities, integrity and benevolence. Trust intention implies that "the truster is securely willing to depend, or intends to depend, on the trustee". (McKnight et al., 2002; Kim and Benbasat, 2003). Trusting beliefs is believed to be able to positively affect trusting intentions (McKnight et al., 2002; Kim and Benbasat, 2003; Gefen et al., 2003; Mayer et al., 1995).

Positive relationship between trust and loyalty can be found in a lot of researches (Chiou 2004; Becerra & Korgaonkar 2011; Zheng et al. 2012). For example, Lee, Kim, and Moon (2000) discovered that trust has a strong impact customer loyalty, while another study discovered that customers' online shopping experiences affects their trust level towards e-retailer (Kim et al. 2009). However, Herington and Weaven (2007) argues that no significant relationship is found between trust and loyalty, therefore, trust is a complex concept and caution is demanded when studying trust. (McKnight et al., 2002; Kim and Benbasat, 2003)

Web Design and E-Loyalty

In e-commerce, website is the channel between consumers and e-retailers, transactions are usually conducted on a website (DeLone & McLean, 2004). Some online sellers' websites attract more traffic than those of other sellers just because of their effective website design features (Hsu, Chang, Chu, & Lee, 2014). In a bunch of researches, web design is considered to be an important dimension of service quality and found to be directly or indirectly associated through satisfaction or trust with loyalty (Goode & Harris 2007; Caruana & Ewing 2010). Cho and Park (2001) discovered that web design quality strongly affect satisfaction of internet shopping consumers, Wolfinbarger and Gilly (2003) found that website design factors can predict consumers' evaluation of quality, satisfaction and loyalty towards e-retailers. In their research trying to integrate the e-loyalty development process, Kim, Jin and Swinney (2009) discovered website design significantly effects on e-satisfaction and e-satisfaction significantly effects on the development of e-loyalty. In general, webpage loading speed, aesthetics of the website, website navigation that affects users' convenience should be considered in website design (Verhagen & van Dolen 2009; Ha & Im 2012; Lu et al. 2012).

Price and E-Loyalty

The way how price affect e-loyalty is unclear, even though it does play an obvious role in deciding whether consumers is loyal to an e-retailer or not. (Chiang & Dholakia 2003; Chiou et al. 2010). For example, in Jiang and Rosenbloom (2005) a positive and direct association between favorable price perceptions and customer revisit intention was found, even if it is only a weak association. Swaid and Wigand (2009) viewed price as an internal dimension of cognitive loyalty and named it "price tolerance", they found positive association between service quality factors and price tolerance. Han and Ryu (2009) considered price to be a cue for consumers to evaluate their experiences with a product or a service provider and shape their attitude towards this provider.

Product Quality and E-Loyalty

Buzzell and Gale (1987) defined product quality as perceptions of consumers towards all non-price characteristics of a firm's good or service. In e-commerce, products are traded between e-retailers and online shoppers, thus the concept of
product quality is similar with the products in traditional market (Ziaullah, Yi & Akhter, 2014). Jarvenpaa and Todd (1996) argues that product quality and product variability are the two most important factors for consumers to make an online shopping decision, and consumers intend to continue visiting the specific e-retailer if their expectation in this manner is met. Patterson (1993) argues that product quality is the most fundamental factor to determine customer's satisfaction. Lin et al. (2011) found that product quality, delivery quality and fair price has positive relationship with customer's satisfaction in internet shopping and encourage marketing practitioners in e-commerce context to pay more attention on product sourcing. Houston and Taylor (1999) found that product quality can fundamentally determine consumer's purchase willingness from website and it will further reflect the web trustworthy level.

Service Quality and E-Loyalty

Parasuraman et al. (2005) defined e-service quality as "the extent to which a website facilitates efficient and effective shopping, purchasing, and delivery of products and services." Santos (2003) referred e-service quality to the "overall customer assessment and judgments in relation to the excellence and the quality of e-service delivery in the virtual marketplace." Service quality of e-retailer has direct impact on loyal relationship between them and their customers (HILA LUDIN & Cheng,2014). E-retailers who offers excellent service quality have advantage for understanding the expectation of their customers, and thus they can take this advantage to improve the customers' satisfaction (Khristianto et al., 2012). Christodoulides and Michaelidou (2010) state that e-retailers with the ability to

provide and exchange information with their customers through formal or informal platform can increase the customers' satisfaction and offer extra value to the online shoppers' experience.

Some researchers found direct relationship between e-service quality and customer loyalty (Srinivasan et al., 2002), while others found that e-service quality affects customer loyalty via customer satisfaction. (Ribbink et al., 2004; Kim et al., 2009; Gounaris et al., 2010).

Brand Promoting Activities and E-Loyalty

Gommans, et al. (2001) divides brand promoting activities into two major types: brand image building and frequency programs. Brand image building in traditional consumer market are mainly through one-way mass communications model of advertising campaigns, but in cyberspace of e-commerce, the nature of internet enables a two way or even group communications approach to build brand image. An example of this is the online social entity which is also described as virtual community organized by e-retailer or its customers, this virtual community aims to facilitate the exchange of information related to the product of service of an e-retailer. (Srinivasan et al., 2002)

Frequency programs are usually used to prevent brand switching to competitive product or alternative stores, loyalty cards are the most often used form of frequency programs (Dowling & Uncles, 1997). It becomes easier to implement frequency loyalty programs in e-markets, because the database technology of e-commerce website can easily record consumers' previous purchase behavior and buy frequency.

(Deitel et al., 2001).

The following table is a summary of previous influential empirical studies on E-

Loyalty:

References	Objectives of Study	Findings
Srinivasan et al. (2002)	Exploring the antecedents of e-loyalty and their impact on e-loyalty	Customization, Contact interactivity, Customer cultivation, Care, Community, Choice, and Character of the e- retailer influence e-loyalty
Anderson and Srinivasan (2003)	Investigating the impact of satisfaction towards loyalty in electronic online shopping context	 Satisfaction directly affect loyalty; Satisfaction indirectly affect loyalty via convenience motivation and perceived value
Wolfinbarger and Gilly (2003)	Examining impact of e-tail quality on satisfaction and loyalty	Web design, fulfillment/reliability, privacy/security and customer service are strongly predictive for loyalty
Parasuraman et al. (2005)	Establishing methods to measure e-service quality	 Most critical: efficiency and fulfillment influence loyalty intentions Critical: system availability affects loyalty intentions Least critical: privacy impacts loyalty intentions

Table 1: Influential empirical studies on E-Loyalty

(Continued)

Flavián et al. (2006)	Studying the relationship between perceived usability, satisfaction, trust and website loyalty	 Trust positively affect loyalty Satisfaction positively affect loyalty
Jarvenpaa and Todd (1996)	Examining how the antecedents of traditional loyalty can affect e-loyalty	Product quality and product variability influence customers' perception of products, which will further affect the re-visit intention to the same website.
Gefen (2002)	Studying the impact of service quality towards trust and loyalty	 E-Trust affects E-Loyalty Perceived switching costs to another online vendor affect E-Loyalty Tangible Service Quality affects E-Loyalty
Kim and Lee (2004)	Identifying the under lying dimensions of Web service quality	Information content, reputation and security, structure and ease of use, and usefulness are found to significantly affect e-loyalty
Kim and Lennon (2013)	NDED	 Reputation significantly and positively affects consumers' emotion Companies established reputation through media exposure, WOM and e WOM Reputation significantly and negatively affects perceived risk
Valvi and West (2013)	explore factors influencing customers' e- loyalty to five online bookselling websites in the UK	• Price is found to significantly affect e-loyalty towards online bookstores

Table 1(Continued): Influential empirical studies on E-Loyalty

2.2 Hypothesis (es)

Based on the review of related literatures in the previous sections, the author of this research proposes the following underlying drivers of e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand:

1) Product and Value:

Product variability (Jarvenpaa and Todd, 1996)

Product quality (Jarvenpaa and Todd, 1996)

Price (Valvi and West, 2013)

Famous brand availability (proposed by the author of this paper)

2) Web Design:

Layout and color (Wolfinbarger and Gilly, 2003)

Navigation (Wolfinbarger and Gilly, 2003)

Clearly demonstrated product information (Wolfinbarger and Gilly, 2003; Kim

and Lee ,2004; Gefen, 2002)

3) Technology:

Loading speed (Wolfinbarger and Gilly,2003)

Efficient search engine (Wolfinbarger and Gilly,2003)

4) Service Quality

Easy ordering process (Wolfinbarger and Gilly, 2003; Kim and Lee ,2004; Gefen,

2002)

Easy and flexible payment method (Proposed by the author of this paper)

Responsiveness (Srinivasan et al., 2002)

On time delivery (Parasuraman et al., 2005)

Timely and updated tracking information (Parasuraman et al., 2005)

5) Security and Trust:

Third party approval (Gefen, 2002)

Secure payment system (Proposed by the author of this paper)

Trust worthy (Flavián et al., 2006; Gefen, 2002; Kim and Lee, 2004)

Privacy protection (Parasuraman et al., 2005; Wolfinbarger and Gilly, 2003)

6) Brand Promoting Activities

Media exposure (Kim and Lennon, 2013)

Word of mouth from friends (Kim and Lennon, 2013)

Electronic word of mouth from internet (Kim and Lennon, 2013)

Virtual community (Srinivasan et al., 2002)

And the hypotheses of this research are then proposed accordingly as follow:

H10: Product and Value does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H1a: Product and Value does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H2o: Wed Design does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H2a: Wed Design does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H3o: Technology does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H3a: Technology does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H4o: Service Quality does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H4a: Service Quality does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H50: Security and Trust does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H5a: Security and Trust does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H60: Brand Promoting Activities does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H6a: Brand Promoting Activities does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

2.3 Conceptual Framework



33

CHAPTER 3

METHODOLOGY

In this chapter, the research design of this paper will be explained, following the structure of "research onion" (Figure 3.1) developed by (Saunders, Lewis and Thornhill, 2009). After this, population and sample selection, research instrument will be discussed, finally the reliability and validity test result will be illustrated and statics of data analysis will be explained.



Figure 2: Research Onion

Source: © Saunders, M., Lewis, P., and Thornhill, A. (2009). Research methods for business students (5th edition). UK: Pearson.

3.1 Research Design

According to the "research onion" of Saunders et al. (2009), five layers should be considered successively when designing a research: research philosophy, research approach, research choices, time horizons, techniques and procedures. These five issues will be discussed in the following sections.

3.1.1 Research Philosophy

A researcher's philosophy decides the assumptions about the way he/she view this world, and these assumptions will further decide the choice of research strategy and methods of his/her research (Saunders et al., 2009). Philosophy that a researcher chooses to commit to influence the research objective as well as the way it is conducted (Johnson & Clark, 2006).

Saunders et al. (2009) argues that there are two major way to think about research philosophy: ontology and epistemology. Ontology deal with the nature of reality and it is a system of beliefs on what constructs the fact. Epistemology, on the other hand, is about the researchers' view about what kind of knowledge should be adopted in the field of study.

Positivism argues that only observable phenomena can provide credible data, facts, while in contrast interpretivism seeks the subjective meaning of the observed fact. Positivistic researchers conduct a research by raising hypotheses based on existing theory and then seeks observable data to either reject or accept all or part of the hypotheses they raise up, in this way positivistic researchers develop new theory (Saunders et al., 2009). In this research, the author adopts positivism research philosophy.

3.1.2 Research Approach

Deductive and inductive research

According to Saunders et al. (2009), there are two types of research approaches: deductive approach and inductive approach, and the extent to which a researcher is clear about the theory before starting the research decides the adoption of the research approach.

Saunders et al. (2009) argues that the deductive approach is most commonly used when trying to explain relationship between variables. In deductive approach, a theory is tested by hypothesis (or hypotheses) formulated based on this theory, data is collected afterwards to verify whether the hypothesis (or hypotheses) is (are) acceptable or not, and then conclusions are reached (Ghauri & Grønhaug, 2005). An extensive review of previous literature is needed to study the previous theories and hypotheses in order to build up a theoretical base (Bryman & Bell, 2011).

On the contrary to deductive research trying to test the existing theories, inductive research aims to create new theories (Bryman and Bell, 2011). In inductive approach data is collected first and theory is then developed based on the analysis of the collected data (Saunders et al., 2009).

In Saunders et al. (2009), it is further indicated that deductive approach is normally adopted positivism research which inductive approach is more often adopted by interpretivism.

Quantitative and qualitative research

A researcher can choose to collect data either from quantitative method which is normally related to deductive perspective, or qualitative method which is normally related to inductive perspective (Bryman and Bell, 2011).

Quantitative method is used when large amount of data is needed to be collected from a large population (Ghauri & Grønhaug, 2005). The data collected should be measurable in the form of comparable numbers, and it should be able to be tested in order to draw a conclusion for the research (Bryman & Bell, 2011). When examining causal relationships between variables, quantitative method is often adopted (Neuman, 2003). In the contrary, qualitative method puts more emphasis on words instead of numbers (Saunders et al., 2009). Neuman (2003) states that when qualitative method is adopted for a research, data gathering is less formalized with few respondents compared with quantitative method.

This research aims to find out the factors that affect online shoppers' E-loyalty towards the online shopping platforms in Bangkok Thailand. The research adopts the positivism research philosophy, deductive approach and quantitative method is thus applied in this research.

By now the first two layers of the "research onion": research philosophy and research approach have been discussed. The next three layers: research strategy, research choice and time horizons can be considered as the process of research design, in which the research questions are turned into a research project. (Robson, 2002)

3.1.3 Research Design

In the previous section, first two layers of the research onion have been uncovered. In this section the next three layers: research strategy, research choices and time horizon will be discussed. These three layers consist of the research design, which is a general plan about how to answer the research questions.

Research Purpose

Before explaining the research design of this research, the purpose of this research will be clarified first. Saunders et al. (2009) classified researches into three types according to their purpose: exploratory, descriptive and explanatory.

The exploratory design is normally used to explore a problem which is still not clear (Aaker et al. ,2010), and the nature of exploratory research is mostly qualitative (Bryman & Bell, 2011; Ghauri & Grønhaug, 2005). On the other hand, it is common for the explanatory and descriptive designs to be conducted in quantitative method (Saunders et al., 2009). The descriptive research is to answer questions such as what, who, when, where and how with regards to a specific situation (Aaker et al., 2010). When relationship between variables needs to be investigated, an explanatory design is supposed to be adopted, this design studies the cause and effect between different variables (Saunders et al., 2009)

The purpose of this research is to found out the factors that affect online shopper's E-loyalty towards online shopping platforms in Bangkok Thailand, by the definition of Saunders et al. (2009), this is an explanatory research, which is to investigate the relationship between variables.

Research Strategy

The choice of research philosophy and approach will affect the way to answer the research question, and the research question will influence the whole research project, including the choice of strategy, techniques of data collection and procedures for data analysis, as well as the time horizon of the research. (Saunders et al., 2009)

Survey strategy is adopted in this research, as Saunders et al. (2009) indicated that it is usually used for deductive approach, and it enables researchers to economically collect massive data from large population. Considering the research purpose as well as the budget constrain, it is suitable to use a survey strategy for this research.

Research Choice

Saunders et al. (2009) refer the process of choosing and combining data collection techniques as "research choice". When there is only one data collection technique adopted in a research, this research chooses a "mono method" to conduct the research.

In this research, mono method is adopted, and a single quantitative data collection method is used through questionnaire only.

Time Horizons

Time horizons, as the last layer of research design, can be classified in to two types: cross-sectional study and longitudinal study. Cross-sectional study deals with a phenomenon at a specific time, while longitudinal study focus on change or development over time (Saunders et al., 2009). Due to the limitation of time, this research adopts the cross-sectional studying method. By now we have already discussed five layers of the "research onion", which are research philosophy, research approach, research strategy, research choice and time horizons. The last layer of this onion, is the data collection and data analysis techniques. This will be discussed in the following sections.

3.2 Population and Sample Selection

3.2.1 Population and Sample Size

Sanders et al. (2009) indicated that because of the limitation of time, money and access, it would be infeasible to collect or to analyze all the available data available, therefore sample techniques is needed to reduce the data needed to be collected. Sample techniques consider only data from a sub-group, instead of all the possible cases. The group of all possible data is referred to population, and the sub-group of data collected from population is called sample (Sanders et al., 2009).

In this research, the research objective is to find out the online shopper's Eloyalty towards online shopping platforms in Bangkok Thailand, therefore, the population of this research is all online shoppers in Bangkok. To be more specific, all Bangkok citizens who has at least one time of online shopping experience constitutes the population of this research.

The sample size was determined by applying a formula which was suggested by Yamane (1967). The formula is shown as below;

$$n = \frac{N}{1 + N(e^2)}$$

Where, n = the sample size

N = the size of population

e = the level of precision

According to the Department of Provicial Administration (2016), the amount of citizen in Bangkok metropolis by December 2016 is 5,686,646, given the precision level is set to be 95% confidence (e=0.05). Thus, the sample size is;

 $n = \frac{5,686,646}{1 + 5,686,646(0.05^2)}$ ≈ 399.97

Therefore, a total sample size of 400 is needed.

3.2.2 Sampling techniques

Sampling techniques are methods that enable the researchers to lower down the amount of data needed to be collected, by using data only from a sub-group (Sanders et al., 2009).

In this research, simple random probability sampling technique is adopted to collect data. Simple random probability sampling technique is a sampling technique to select the sample randomly from a sample frame, during the process of simple random probability sampling, each case of the population has the same probability to be selected (Sanders et al., 2009).

The first question of the questionnaire is a qualifying question concerning whether the respondent has any online shopping experience before. Only the respondents with a YES answer to the first question can further proceed with the questionnaire and answer the rest of the questions.

3.3 Research Instrument

3.3.1 Questionnaire Design

It is easier for respondents to understand a questionnaire if it is designed attractively (Bryman & Bell, 2011). Saunders et al. (2009) made discuss about how to overcome the difficulties when designing a questionnaire in order to get more responses from respondents. A questionnaire which is too long may get low response rate because the respondents may feel too bored to complete it (Ghauri & Grønhaug, 2005). It is therefore important to formulate the questions shortly and concisely(Bryman & Bell, 2011), and to avoid including two questions in one question (Saunders et al., 2009).

Both open and/or closed questions can be adpoted in one questionnaire (Saunders et al., 2009). Dillman (2007) refered open question to open-ended question, respondents to answer these kind of question as per their will without any restrictions (Fink, 2003). Close question, which is also refered to close-ended question (Dillman, 2007), on the other hand, offers predeterminded answers to respondents and request them to choose from those anwers. Bryman and Bell (2011) emphasize that a questionnaire should not include too many open questions because it is usually more difficult for respondents to answer and thus may lead to a low response rate. Saunders et al. (2009) indicate that close questions are quicker and easier to answer. The importance of an explanation to purpose of the questionnaire is stated in Saunders et al. (2009), this explanation should be made on the first page of the questionnaire shortly and clearly in order to achieve a response rate as high as possible (Dillman, 2007). Therefore, on the first page of the online questionnaire of this study, an introduction of the purpose of this questionnaire is made.

Ghauri and Grønhaug (2005) indicate a questionnaire should start with questions seeking to understand the background information of the respondents. Therefore, in the first part of the questionnaire is designed to get the background information of respondents' online experience. The first question is a qualifying question concerning whether the respondent has any online shopping experience before. Only the respondents with a YES answer to the first question can further proceed with the questionnaire and answer the rest of the questions. The second question in the first part of the questionnaire is an open question asking about the website or shopping platform that the respondents are loyal to. This question intent to let the respondents understand which website to think of when answering questions in second part of the questionnaire. Finally, the third question asks about the product category that the respondent purchases most often from the website he/she write down in the second question.

The second part of the questionnaire is designed to measure underlying drivers of e-loyalty, and also to explain the relationship between these variables. As proposed previously, the underling drivers of e-loyalty in this study include: Web Design, Technology, Product and Value, Service Quality, Security and Trust, Brand Promoting Activities. Aaker et al. (2010) stated that Likert scale enabled the respondent to rank the degree of agreement towards a curtain statement, and these ranking data enable the researchers to study the relationships between variables. Therefore, Likert scale is used to measure the underlying drivers of e-loyalty in this study and to study the relationships between these variables.

Finally, in the last part of the questionnaire, questions about the demography information of the respondent is asked. The purpose of asking this kind of demography questions is to see whether the hypotheses which are proposed between E-loyalty and its drivers can be generalized, and to what extent they can be generalized. Another purpose of asking demography questions is to draw a profile of loyal customer for different online shopping platform. These questions include information about the respondent's gender, age, income, education level, online shopping frequency and marriage status. All these questions asking about demography information are close questions with predetermined answers. In case that for some question(s), the predetermined answers cannot reflect actual situation of the respondent, an "other" option is offered, and respondent is requested to specify their actual situation if he/she choose "other" as the answer.

The first question is about the respondent's gender, the answers of which are made into three categories: male, female ore LGBT (Lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender). This second question asks about the respondent's age, which is divided into six categories; under18, 18-25, 26-29, 30-35, 35-45 and above 45. Income is inquired in the third with four predetermined answers: 0-10,000 baht/10,001-20,000 baht/20,001-35,000 baht/More than 35,000 baht. Education level including high school, bachelor degree, master degree and doctor degree is to be selected in the

fourth question. Online shopping frequency is asked in the fifth question with three predetermined options and "other" as a free option to let respondent describe their actual situation. Finally, marriage status is asked in the last question.

Google Drive is used to create an actual online questionnaire. Google Drive can create forms to include the questions in the questionnaire of this research, and these forms can be easily spread or distributed over the Internet through email or social media apps such as Facebook and line. And the data collected in Google Drive can be automatically put into spreadsheet, from which the data can be easily imported into SPSS.

3.3.2 Operationalization

Some variables are easy to measure, such as the gender, age, frequency of shopping online etc., but other variables with abstract concepts or subjective nature are difficult to measure. Abstract concepts of the variables need to be rendered into a tangible and measurable way in order to collect data, this process is called operationalization (Sekaran & Bougie, 2014). In order to operationalize the abstract concept of a variable, definition of it needs to be made and the content of the measure need to be thought of. In this study, the variables need to be operationalized include Product & Value, Web Design, Technology, Service Quality, Security and Trust, Brand Promoting Activities.

In order to create the instrument to measure the above variables in this research, the author of this research has reviewed previous literature, brainstormed ideas and discussed with project advisor as well as some field experts in e-commerce business in Thailand. Finally, the questions to measure the variables in this research was

created and listed as follow (Table 2):

Table 2: Operationalization of research variables

Variables	Questions	Inspired by Article
Web Design	The layout and color of this online	Gummerus et al. (2004),
	shopping platform is appealing to me.	Wolfinbarger and Gilly
		(2003)
	This website has easy navigation, I can	Gummerus et al. (2004),
	find my interested product very easily.	Wolfinbarger and Gilly
		(2003)
	The product information demonstrated	Gummerus et al. (2004),
	on this Website is clear enough for me	Wolfinbarger and Gilly
	to make decision	(2003)
Technology	The loading speed of the website is	Gummerus et al. (2004),
	quick	Wolfinbarger and Gilly
		(2003)
	Search engine of this website is effective	Gummerus et al. (2004),
	effective	Wolfinbarger and Gilly (2003)
Product &	This website offers a wide range of	Jarvenpaa and Todd
Value	products	(1996)
value	The products I buy from this website	Jarvenpaa and Todd
	have good quality	(1996)
	The price of products sold on this	
	website are competitive compared with	Valvi and West (2013)
	other websites	
	I can find enough famous brand in this	Created by the author
	website	
Security &	This website has third-party approval	Kim et al. (2008)
Trust	which makes me feel safe to shop and	
	pay online	
	I feel secure about the electronic	Created by the author
	payment system of this company	
	This online shopping platform is worth	Koufaris and Hampton-
	to trust	Sosa (2004)
	I feel secure when providing private	Created by the author
	information to this online company	
Service	The ordering process of this website is	Srinivasan et al. (2002)
Quality	easy	

(Continued)

	The website has various payment methods, and it is easy for me to make payment.	Created by the author
	This website response to my request quickly	Ribbink et al. (2004)
Ordered product will always be send to me on time as the website has promise		Mentzer et al. (2001), Bienstock and Royne (2010)
	This website offers delivery tracking information which is timely and updated	Mentzer et al. (2001), Rafiq and Jaafar (2007)
Brand Promoting Activities	I have a good impression of the website because of advertisement of it on TV/magazine/social media	Kim and Lennon (2013)
	People I know recommend this website to me	Kim and Lennon (2013)
2	I have read a lot of positive comment about this website from the internet and social media	Kim and Lennon (2013)
BA	This website has its own virtual community or social media communities to let its user make comments or media communities to let	Srinivasan et al. (2002)
	its user make comments or exchange ideas.	• /

Five- Likert style rating scale was adopted to let respondents rate their degree of agreement with the above listed statements, the degree of agreement is from strongly disagree to strongly agree, and the scores of each level are set as below:

1= Strongly Disagree

2= Disagree

3= Neutral

4= Agree

5= Strongly Agree

The detailed questionnaire of this study can be found in Appendix A.

3.4 Reliability and Content Validity

Before using the questionnaire discussed in previous sections to collect data, five field experts are invited to test the content validity by using Rovinelli and Hambleton's (1977) item-objective congruence index, and a pre-test with 30 respondents is applied in order to test the reliability.

3.4.1 Content Validity Test

IOC (item-objective congruence index) is a method to evaluate the content validity of questionnaire. Field experts are asked to evaluate each item according to their opinions about whether the designed question can clearly measure the attribute of objective. There are three options for each question:

1: I am certain that the question can clearly measure the objective

- 0: I am not certain whether the question can clearly measure the objective or not
- -1: I am certain that the question can NOT clearly measure the objective.

The result of all questions is then put into the following formula to calculate IOC value:

$$IOC = \frac{\Sigma R}{N}$$

Where,

IOC= consistency between questions and objectives

 ΣR = Sum of all assessment points from all experts

N= Number of experts

Index of each question must be 0.5 or higher for this question to be acceptable.

The five filed experts that were asked to evaluate the questionnaire of this research are:

 Miss. Wanida Manaletsamrith, A students from Huachiew Chalermprakiet University, online shopper with 5 years online shopping experience in Thailand.
 Mr. Perry Ye, Managing Director of Nubia Technology (Thailand) Company Limited, a company sells 60% of its mobile phone product from online channel.
 Miss. Sawanya Pipatpaisarn, Senior Marketing Manager of 24 Shopping Company Limited, an online e-retailer of CP All.

4. Miss. Rawiwan Horinouchi, Managing Director of DPX Logistic Company Limited, a third party logistic provider for e-commerce customers.

5. Miss. Narisara Udomkitmongkol, SME Owner, E-Vendor who sells cosmetic products from online channel

The result of IOC for each question in the questionnaire of this research is above 0.5, so the content validity is verified. Details of IOC result can be found in Appendix B.

3.4.2 Reliability Test

A pre-test with 30 respondents is applied in order to test the reliability.

According to Cronbach (1951), reliability can be verified when Cronbach's alpha

value is higher than 0.7.

The criteria of reliability are showed as the table below:

Table 3: Criteria of Reliability Result

Cronbach's Alpha	Reliability Level	Desirability Level
Coefficient		
0.80 - 1.00	Very High	Excellent
0.70 - 0.79	High	Good
0.50 - 0.69	Medium	Fair
0.30 - 0.49	Low	Poor
Less than 0.30	Very Low	Unacceptable

The reliability test results using SPSS software are showed as below:

Variables	Cronbach's Alpha	Reliability	Desirability
	Coefficient	Level	Level
All Parts (22 items)	.953	Very High	Excellent
Web Design (3 items)	.861	Very High	Excellent
Technology (2 items)	.866	Very High	Excellent
Product & Value (4 items)	.764	High	Good
Service Quality (5 items)	.929	Very High	Excellent
Security & Trust (4 items)	.858	Very High	Excellent
Brand Promoting (4 items)	.871	Very High	Excellent

Table 4: Reliability Test Result

From the above test result, it is clear that all the variables have a Cronbach's alpha value higher than 0.7, therefore the reliability of all variables is verified. The detailed reliability test results can be found in Appendix C.

3.5 Statistics for Data Analysis

3.5.1 Cross Tabulation

Cross tabulation, also known as contingency table analysis, is used for categorical data analysis, multidimensional data can be displayed by using this technique. Cross Tabulation is used when data is categorized by one or more categorical variables, it displays the joint frequency of data based on two or more categorical variables.

This paper uses cross tabulation to draw a profile of the loyal customers of different online shopping platforms.

3.5.2 Multinomial Logistic Regression

According to Greene (2012), multinomial logistic regression is a method used to study the way that a given set of independent variables affect the probabilities of the different possible outcomes of a categorical dependent variable, it is used when the dependent variable is nominal and there are more than two categories of answers for this dependent variable.

The multinomial logistic model has two assumptions. First, for each case of every independent variable, there can be only a single value. Second, it is also assumed that independent variables cannot perfectly predict dependent variables for any case.

There are multiple equivalent ways to describe the mathematical model underlying multinomial logistic regression. This can make it difficult to compare different treatments of the subject in different texts. The article on logistic regression presents a number of equivalent formulations of simple logistic regression, and many of these have analogues in the multinomial logit model.

The basic idea to describe the mathematical model for multinomial logistic regression is to use dot product to create a linear predictor function from which constructs a score from a set of weights is constructed, and this score should be are linearly combined with the explanatory variables (features) of a given observation:

$$score(X_i, k) = \beta_k \cdot X_i$$

Where:

 X_i - vector of explanatory variables describing observation *i*, β_k - vector of weights (or regression coefficients) corresponding to outcome *k*, *score* (X_i , k) - score associated with assigning observation *i* to category *k*.

In discrete choice theory, where observations represent people and outcomes represent choices, the score is considered the utility associated with person i choosing outcome k. The predicted outcome is the one with the highest score.

It is assumed that there are a sets of *N* data points observed the observing objectives. Each data point *i* contains a set of *M* explanatory variables $x_{1,i} \dots x_{M,i}$, and an corresponding categorical outcome Y_i , which can take on one of *K* possible values. These possible values represent different categories of dependent variable, and they are often coding with number from 1 to *K* in order to be described mathematically. The attributes of each data points can be expressed and described by the value of these explanatory variables and outcome. Using these value of observed data, multinomial logistic regression seeks to build up a model that explains the relationship between the explanatory variables and the outcome, and use this model to predict the outcome of new data points by collecting data of explanatory variables.

Multinomial logistic regression uses a linear predictor function f(k, i) to predict the probability that observation *i* has outcome *k*, of the following form:

$$f(k, i) = \beta_{0,k} + \beta_{1,k} \cdot x_{1,i} + \beta_{2,k} \cdot x_{2,i} + \beta_{3,k} \cdot x_{3,i} + \dots + \beta_{M,k} \cdot x_{M,i}$$

Where,

 $\beta_{M,k}$ - regression coefficient associated with the *m*th explanatory variable and the *k*th outcome

The regression coefficients and explanatory variables are normally grouped into vectors of size M+1, so that the predictor function can be written more compactly:

$$f(k,i) = \beta_k \cdot x_i$$

Where,

 β_k - the set of regression coefficients associated with outcome k,

 x_i - set of explanatory variables associated with observation *i*.

In this study, the dependent variable is a nominal variable, the value is the choice of online shopping platform that the respondent is loyal to. And all independent variables are measurable variables with ordinal value. So multinomial logistic regression is applied in this study.

3.6 Methodology summary



CHAPTER 4

RESEARCH RESULTS

In the chapter, demographics data of all respondents, results of research variables and results of hypothesis testing will be demonstrated successively, and a summary of hypotheses testing result will be made.

4.1 Summary of Demographic Data

In this section, demographic data of the respondents will be demonstrated in table 5, and a brief description about this data will be made.

Table 5: Den	nographic data of responder	nts	
Demographic Information		Frequency	Percent (%)
Gender	Male	112	27.9
	Female	256	63.7
	LGBT	34	8.5
Age	Under 18	24	6.0
	18-25	132	32.8
	26-29	36	9.0
	30-35	76	18.9
	36-45	86	21.4
	Above 45	48	11.9
Income	0-10,000 baht	100	24.9
	10,001-20,000 baht	80	19.9
	20,001-35,000 baht	90	22.4
	More than 35,001 baht	132	32.8
Education	High School	48	11.9
	Bachelor Degree	258	64.2
	Master Degree	92	22.9
	Doctor Degree	4	1.0
Shopping Frequency	Less than 1 time per month	26	6.5
1 5	1 time per month	156	38.8
	2-3 times per month	146	36.3
	more than 3 times per month	74	18.4
Marriage	Single	276	68.7
Status	Married	126	31.3













64%



Master DegreeDoctor Degree



Figure 9: Respondents Marriage Status

To summarize, there are totally 418 respondents who responded to the online questionnaire, out of which 16 respondents replied that they have never done any

online shopping before, data from these 16 respondents are therefore excluded, and data of the rest 402 respondents is valid.

Among these 402 respondents, 27.9% were man, 63.7% were women and the rest 8.5% were LGBT (lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender).

The largest age group of the respondents is 18-25, consists of 32.8% of the total sample amount, followed by the age groups of 36-45 (21.4%) and 30-35 (18.9%), when taking the age group 26-29 (9%) into consideration, respondents from age between 18-45 take 82.1% of the total sample amount. Age group under 18 takes only 6% and age group above 45 takes 11.9%.

Income of 24.9% of the respondents is below 10,000 baht, 19.9% between 10,001 and 20,000 baht, 22.4% between 20,001 to 35,000 baht, and 32.8% above 35,000 baht.

11.9% of the respondents has high school as their highest education level, 64.2% has bachelor degree, 22.9% has master degree and only 1% has doctor degree.

Respondents who reported to do online shopping one time per month consists 38.8% of the total sample amounts, and those who reported to shop 2-3 times per month contribute 36.3%. There were 6.5% of the sample shopped online less than one time per month, and there were 18.4% of frequent online shoppers who shopped online more than 3 times per month.

Finally, in terms of marriage status, there were 68.7% of single respondents and the rest 31.3% of respondents were married.

4.2 Results of Research Variables

In this section, the results of research variables will be demonstrated.

Table 6: Results of loyal shopping platform

Loyalty Website				
2. which	2. which online shopping platform are you loyal Perce			
to?		Frequency	(%)	
Valid	Facebook	84	20.9	
	Instagram	54	13.4	
	Lazada	110	27.4	
	Line	62	15.4	
	Other	92	22.9	
	Total	402	100.0	



Figure 10: Respondents' choice of loyal online shopping platform

In answering the question: "which online shopping platform are you loyal to?", with a total 402 valid samples, 27.4% of the respondents chose Lazada, 20.9% chose Facebook, 15.4% voted Line, and 13.4% Voted Instagram. These four online shopping platforms rank top 4 in the list of all responses, contribute to 77.1% of the total responses. None of the rest answers got a percentage over than 5%, thus not being representative enough when being alone, the author of this study therefore

aggregated them into "other" type, which contribute totally 22.9%.

Table 7: Categories of most shopped products

Product Category				
3. Which of the following product category do you buy from the above website most often?		Freq uency	Percent	
Valid	Clothes/shoes/watches/bags	196	48.8	
	Grocery/Health/Beauty	74	18.4	
	Consumer Electronics	34	8.5	
	Toys/children/baby	26	6.5	
	Other	72	17.9	
	Total	402	100.0	





In answering the question: "which of the following product category do you buy from the above website most often?", with a total 402 valid samples, 48.8% of the respondents chose "Clothes/shoes/watches/bags", 18.4% chose "Grocery/Health/Beauty", 8.5% of the respondents voted "Consumer Electronics" and 6.5% of them voted "Toys/children/baby". For other category, none got a percentage over than 5%, thus not being representative enough when being alone the author of this study therefore aggregated them into "other" type, which contribute totally
17.9%.

Table 8: Summary of answers to questions of variables

Descriptive Statistics	I	Minimu	Maximu	Mode		Std.
Variables	Ν	m	m	Mode	Mean	Deviation
Main factors affecting		111	111		Wieum	Deviation
Web Design	402	1	5	4	3.61	.898
Technology	402	1	5	4	3.80	.901
Product & Value	402	1	5	4	4.05	.881
Service Quality	402	1	5	5	4.03	.821
Security & Trust	402	1	5	5	4.24	.918
Brand Promoting	402	1	5	4	3.82	.898
6		1	3	4	3.82	.898
Details of Web Design		1	5	4	3.72	042
Layout & Color	402 402	1	5 5	4		.843
Navigation		1	5		4.07	.767
Product Information	402	1	3	4	3.95	.894
Details of Technology I		1		4	2.00	000
Loading Speed	402	1	5 5	4	3.99	.888
Search Engine	402	1	5	5	4.05	.911
Details of Product & V			-			
Product Variability	402	1	5	4	3.99	.934
Product Quality	402	1	5	4	3.79	.863
Price	402	1	5	4	3.72	.927
Famous Brand	402	1	5	4	3.76	.900
Availability			·		0.70	
Details of Security & T			1	1	1	
Third Party Seal	402	1	5	4	3.81	.986
Secure Payment	402	2	5	4	3.86	.884
System						
Trustworthy	402	1	5	4	3.90	.861
Privacy Protection	402	1	5	4	3.68	.931
Details of Service Qual				-		
Easy Order Process	402	1	5	4	3.91	.908
Easy Payment Method	402	1	5	4	4.04	.889
Responsiveness	402	1	5	4	3.81	.923
On Time Delivery	402	1	5	4	3.87	.878
Details of Brand Prom	oting Fact	tor				
Tracking Information	402	1	5	4	3.83	.969
Media Exposure	402	1	5	3	3.60	.959
WOM	402	1	5	4	3.61	1.038
E WOM	402	1	5	4	3.63	.884
Community	402	1	5	3	3.49	.959

The table 8 presents a summation of the respondents' answers to the all the questions designed to measure various factors that affect E-loyalty, including minimum value, maximum value, mode, mean and standard deviation. The standard deviation is showing how much each answer on average differed from the mean of the variable.

Gender	* Loya	al Website Crosstabu	lation					
			Loyal We					
			Faceboo	Instagra				
			k	m	Lazada	Line	Other	Total
Gender	Male	Count	20	10	46	12	24	112
		% within Loyal Website	23.8%	18.5%	41.8%	19.4%	26.1%	27.9%
	Fema	Count	64	38	58	38	58	256
	le	% within Loyal Website	76.2%	70.4%	52.7%	61.3%	63.0%	63.7%
	LGB	Count	0	6	6	12	10	34
	Т	% within Loyal Website	0.0%	11.1%	5.5%	19.4%	10.9%	8.5%
Total		Count	84	54	110	62	92	402
		% within Loyal Website	100.0%	100.0%	100.0 %	100.0 %	100.0 %	100.0 %

Table 9: Crosstabulation between gender and loyal website



Figure 12: Crosstabulation between gender and loyal website

Table 9 is the result of cross tabulation between gender and the shopping platform the respondents are loyal to. The statistics shows all brand choices share the same pattern that female tend to dominate Online Shopping in Bangkok Thailand Table 10: Crosstabulation between age and loyal website

Age *	Loyal W	ebsite Crosstabulat	ion							
			Loyal Website							
			Faceboo	Instagra				-		
			k	m	Lazada	Line	Other	Total		
Age	Under 18	Count	4	8	2	4	6	24		
		% within Loyal Website	4.8%	14.8%	1.8%	6.5%	6.5%	6.0%		
	18-25	Count	18	34	22	22	36	132		
		% within Loyal Website	21.4%	63.0%	20.0%	35.5%	39.1%	32.8%		
	26-29	Count	12	2	14	0	8	36		
		% within Loyal Website	14.3%	3.7%	12.7%	0.0%	8.7%	9.0%		
	30-35	Count	24	6	20	10	16	76		
		% within Loyal Website	28.6%	11.1%	18.2%	16.1%	17.4%	18.9%		
	36-45	Count	16	4	32	18	16	86		
		% within Loyal Website	19.0%	7.4%	29.1%	29.0%	17.4%	21.4%		
	Above	Count	10	0	20	8	10	48		
	45	% within Loyal Website	11.9%	0.0%	18.2%	12.9%	10.9%	11.9%		
Total		Count	84	54	110	62	92	402		
		% within Loyal Website	100.0%	100.0%	100.0 %	100.0 %	100.0 %	100.0 %		



Figure 13: Crosstabulation between age and loyal website

Table 10 is the result of cross tabulation between age and the shopping platform the respondents are loyal to. The statistics shows that among all loyal online shoppers of Facebook, 28.6% are coming from the age group 30-35 years old, which contributes the highest percentage. The age group that contributes the most for loyal customer of Lazada is 36-45 years old, which takes 29.1% of all Lazada's loyal online shoppers. Age group from 18-25 years old contributes 63% of loyal online shoppers to Instagram and 35.5% to Line, which ranks higher than other age group.

Incom	Income * Loyal Website Crosstabulation										
			Loyal We	Loyal Website							
			Faceboo	Instagra							
		-	k	m	Lazada	Line	Other	Total			
Inco	0-10,000	Count	14	32	16	16	22	100			
me	baht	% within Loyal Website	16.7%	59.3%	14.5%	25.8%	23.9%	24.9 %			
	10,001-	Count	18	10	24	12	16	80			
	20,000 baht	% within Loyal Website	21.4%	18.5%	21.8%	19.4%	17.4%	19.9 %			
	20,001-	Count	20	4	32	14	20	90			
	35,000 baht	% within Loyal Website	23.8%	7.4%	29.1%	22.6%	21.7%	22.4 %			
	More	Count	32	8	38	20	34	132			
	than 35,001 baht	% within Loyal Website	38.1%	14.8%	34.5%	32.3%	37.0%	32.8 %			
Total		Count	84	54	110	62	92	402			
		% within Loyal Website	100.0%	100.0%	100.0 %	100.0 %	100.0 %	100.0 %			

Table 11: Crosstabulation between income and loyal website



Figure 14: Crosstabulation between income and loyal website

Table 11 is the result of cross tabulation between age and the shopping platform the respondents are loyal to. The statistics shows for all brands except for Instagram, online shoppers with income over than 35,000 baht ranks the top against online shoppers lies in other income group. However, 59.3% of loyal online shoppers of Instagram have monthly income less than 10,000 bath.

Educa	ation * Log	yal Website Crosstab	ulation					
			Loyal We	ebsite				
			Faceboo k	Instagra m	Lazada	Line	Other	Total
Educ	High	Count	6	18	8	8	8	48
ation	School	% within Loyal Website	7.1%	33.3%	7.3%	12.9%	8.7%	11.9%
	Bachelor	Count	58	32	66	40	62	258
	Degree	% within Loyal Website	69.0%	59.3%	60.0%	64.5%	67.4%	64.2%
	Master	Count	20	4	34	14	20	92
	Degree	% within Loyal Website	23.8%	7.4%	30.9%	22.6%	21.7%	22.9%
	Do	Count	0	0	2	0	2	4
	ctor Degree	% within Loyal Website	0.0 %	0.0 %	1. 8%	0. 0%	2. 2%	1. 0%
Т	otal	Count	84	54	11 0	62	92	4 02
		% within Loyal Website	100 .0%	100 .0%	10 0.0%	10 0.0%	10 0.0%	1 00.0%

Table 12: Crosstabulation between education and loyal website



Figure 15: Crosstabulation between education and loyal website

Table 12 is the result of cross tabulation between education level of online shoppers and the shopping platform they are loyal to. The statistics shows all brand choices share the same pattern that online shoppers with bachelor degree tend to dominate Online Shopping in Bangkok Thailand

Shoppin	Shopping Frequency * Loyal Website Crosstabulation										
			Loyal We	ebsite	-	-	_				
			Faceboo k	Instagra m	Lazada	Line	Other	Total			
Shoppi	Less than	Count	2	6	8	0	10	26			
ng Freque ncy	1 time per month	% within Loyal Website	2.4%	11.1%	7.3%	0.0%	10.9%	6.5%			
	1 time per	Count	24	22	46	30	34	156			
	month	% within Loyal Website	28.6%	40.7%	41.8%	48.4%	37.0%	38.8%			

Table 13: Crosstabulation between shopping frequency and loyal website

68

(Continued)

	2-3 times	Count	32	18	40	26	30	146
	per month	% within Loyal Website	38.1%	33.3%	36.4%	41.9%	32.6%	36.3%
	more than	Count	26	8	16	6	18	74
	3 times per month	% within Loyal Website	31.0%	14.8%	14.5%	9.7%	19.6%	18.4%
Total	-	Count	84	54	110	62	92	402
		% within Loyal Website	100.0%	100.0%	100.0 %	100.0%	100.0%	100.0 %

Table 13(Continued): Crosstabulation between shopping frequency and loyal website

Table 13 is the result of cross tabulation between shopping frequency of online shoppers and the shopping platform they are loyal to. The statistics shows all brand choices share the same pattern that online shoppers with the shopping frequency from 1 to 3 times per month tend to dominate Online Shopping in Bangkok Thailand.



Figure 16: Crosstabulation between shopping frequency and loyal website

Marria	ge Statu	s * Loyal Websi	ite Crossta	abulation						
			Loyal We	Loyal Website						
			Faceboo k	Instagra m	Lazada	Line	Other	Total		
Marria	Single	Count	54	48	60	44	70	276		
ge Status		% within Loyal Website	64.3%	88.9%	54.5%	71.0%	76.1%	68.7%		
	Marrie	Count	30	6	50	18	22	126		
	d	% within Loyal Website	35.7%	11.1%	45.5%	29.0%	23.9%	31.3%		
Total		Count	84	54	110	62	92	402		
		% within Loyal Website	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0 %		

Table 14: Crosstabulation between marriage status and loyal website





Table 14 is the result of cross tabulation between marriage status of online shoppers and the shopping platform they are loyal to. The statistics shows all brand choices share the same pattern that single online shoppers tend to dominate Online Shopping in Bangkok Thailand. 4.3 Results of Hypothesis Testing

The result of the Multinomial Logistic Regression analysis is showed in the following table:

Table 15: Multinomial Logistic Regression Results

Likeliho	od Ratio Tests			
	Model Fitting Criteria	Likelihood R	atio Tes	ts
	-2 Log Likelihood of Reduced			
Effect	Model	Chi-Square	df	Sig.
Product &	z Value	•		
PRO1	621.571	47.758	16	.000*
PRO2	613.671	39.858	16	.001*
PRO3	604.098	30.286	16	.017*
PRO4	598.874	25.062	16	.069
Web Desi	gn			·
WEB1	378.578	59.931	16	.000*
WEB2	343.534	24.888	16	.072
WEB3	347.730	29.083	16	.023*
Technolog	ду			
TEC1	249.701	59.921	16	.000*
TEC2	228.760	38.979	16	.001*
Service Q	uality			
SER1	598.543	27.338	16	.038*
SER2	620.369	49.165	16	.000*
SER3	605.118	33.913	16	.006*
SER4	626.403	55.198	16	.000*
SER5	598.434 ^b	27.229	16	.039*
Security &	<u>k</u> Trust			
SEC1	587.392	32.202	16	.009*
SEC2	577.502	22.312	12	.034*
SEC3	588.976	33.786	16	.006*
SEC4	602.841	47.651	16	.000*
	moting Activities	1		
BRA1	595.283	22.554	16	.126
BRA2	634.350	61.620	16	.000*
BRA3	619.675	46.945	16	.000*
BRA4	644.730	72.001	16	.000*

The result of multinomial logit shows the followings:

Hypothesis 1

H10: Product and Value does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H1a: Product and Value does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Given p-value of PRO1, PRO2 and PRO3 are less than .05 (PRO1 p-value=.000, PRO2 p-value=.001, PRO3 p-value=.017), thus we can reject H10: Product and Value does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand and accept H1a: Product and Value does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

The result indicates that PRO1-product variability, PRO2-product quality and PRO3-price significantly affect Online Shoppers' E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Hypothesis 2

H2o: Wed Design does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H2a: Wed Design does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Given p-value of WEB1 and WEB3 are less than .05 (WEB1 p-value=.000, WEB3 p-value=0.023), thus we can reject H20: Wed Design does not influence

online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand and accept H2a: Wed Design does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

The result indicates that WEB1-layout and color of website, WEB3-clearly demonstrated product information significantly affect Online Shoppers' E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

Hypothesis 3

H3o: Technology does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H3a: Technology does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Given p-value of TEC1 and TEC2 are less than .05 (TEC1 p-value=.000, TEC2 p-value=0.001), thus we can reject H30: Technology does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand and accept H3a: Technology does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

The result indicates that TEC1-loading speed of the website, TEC2-efficiency of the search engine significantly affect Online Shoppers' E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

Hypothesis 4

H40: Service Quality does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H4a: Service Quality does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Given p-value of SER1, SER2, SER3 SER4 and SER5 are less than .05 (SER1 p-value=.038, SER2 p-value=.000, SER3 p-value=.006, SER4 p-value=.000, SER5 p-value=.039), thus we can reject H40: Service Quality does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand and accept H4a: Service Quality does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

The result indicates that SER1-easy order process, SER2-easy payment method, SER3-responsiveness, SER4-on time delivery, SER5-timely and updated delivery tracking information significantly affect Online Shoppers' E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

Hypothesis 5

H50: Security and Trust does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H5a: Security and Trust does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Given p-value of SEC1, SEC2, SEC3 and SEC4 are less than .05 (SEC1 p-value=.009, SEC2 p-value=.034, SEC3 p-value=.006, SEC4 p-value. =000), thus we

can reject H50: Security and Trust does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand and accept H5a: Security and Trust does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

The result indicates that SEC1-third party approval, SEC2-secure electronic payment system, SEC3-trustworthy, SEC4-privacy protection significantly affect Online Shoppers' E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

Hypothesis 6

H60: Brand Promoting Activities does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H6a: Brand Promoting Activities does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Given p-value of BRA2, BRA3 and BRA4 are less than .05 (BRA2 pvalue=.000, BRA3 p-value=.000, BRA4 p-value=.000), thus we can reject H60: Brand Promoting Activities does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand and accept H6a: Brand Promoting Activities does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

The result indicates that BRA2-word of mouth from friend, BRA3-electronic word of mouth from internet, BRA4-virtual community build up by online shopping platform significantly affect Online Shoppers' E-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

4.4 Summary of Hypothesis Testing

In previous section, the results of hypothesis testing have been result. To summarize, the following hypotheses have been rejected:

H1o: Product and Value does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H2o: Wed Design does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H3o: Technology does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H40: Service Quality does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H50: Security and Trust does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H60: Brand Promoting Activities does not influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

And the following hypotheses have been accepted:

H1a: Product and Value does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H2a: Wed Design does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H3a: Technology does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H4a: Service Quality does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H5a: Security and Trust does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

H6a: Brand Promoting Activities does influence online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand

Therefore, it can be concluded that all the proposed factors from the theoretical model, including product and value, web design, technology, service quality, security and trust, brand promoting activities all significantly affect online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand.

This conclusion that the proposed factors significantly affect e-loyalty is in line with previous research. Lin et al. (2011) found that product quality, delivery quality and fair price has positive relationship with customer's satisfaction in internet shopping. Gummerus et al. (2004) verified the positive relationship between technology and customer loyalty. Wolfinbarger and Gilly (2003) found that website design factors can predict consumers' evaluation of quality, satisfaction and loyalty towards e-retailers. Lee, Kim, and Moon (2000) discovered that trust has a strong impact customer loyalty, Srinivasan et al. (2002) found directly relationship between e-service quality and customer loyalty. Kim and Lennon (2013) found the positive link between brand promoting activities and e-loyalty.

CHAPTER 5

DISCUSSION

5.1 Research Findings and Conclusion

5.1.1 Research Findings of Hypotheses Testing

Based on the hypotheses testing results, we have the following research findings:

Product and value factor was found to significantly related to e-loyalty towards online shopping platform. Elements that were found to affect e-loyalty includes: product variability of the online shopping platform, quality of products sold on the online shopping platform, and price of products sold on the online shopping platform. However, having enough famous brand sold on the online shopping platform was not found to be significantly connected with customers' loyalty.

Web design factor was found to significantly affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform. Among all the dimensions of web design, appealing layout and color as well as clearly demonstrated product information was found to significantly affect online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform, while another dimension easy navigation was not found to significantly connected with e-loyalty of customers.

A significant causal relationship between technology factor and e-loyalty was also discovered, and all dimensions of technology factors, including fast loading speed and efficient search engine of the online shopping platform were all found to significantly affect e-loyalty.

All dimensions of service quality were verified to significantly affect e-loyalty. Thus, service quality factors were concluded to have causal relationship with online shoppers' loyalty. Dimensions of service quality includes: easy order process, easy payment method, responsiveness, on time delivery, timely and updated tracking information of delivery.

Same with service factors, all dimensions of security and trust factors were all found to significantly affect e-loyalty, and the dimensions includes: third party approval, secured electronic payment system, trustworthy of the online shopping platform, protection for private information.

Finally, three out of four dimensions of brand promoting factor were discovered to significantly affect e-loyalty, including: word of mouth from friends, electronic word of mouth from internet, virtual community build by the online shopping platform which enables information exchange between all online shoppers

5.1.2 Customer profiling analysis findings of each brand

By cross tabulation analysis between the brand choice of loyal online shopping platform and the demographic information of online shoppers, we can draw a rough profile of loyal customer for different online shopping platform.

Among all 402 respondents, 84 online shoppers are loyal to Facebook, 54 online shoppers voted their loyalty to Instagram, 110 respondents selected Lazada, and 62 respondents are loyal to Line. The rest 92 respondents are loyal to other different online shopping platforms, but these are not representative enough and therefore not worth to do analysis.

For fans of Facebook, 76.2% are female, they have relatively even distribution in different age group from 18 years old to 45 years old, with the highest 28.6% in age

group 30-35. In terms of income, 38.1% of Facebook's loyal online shoppers have more than 35,000 Baht monthly income

Loyal online shoppers of Instagram are mainly female (70.4%) and overwhelming distributed in age group 18-25 (63%) comparing with other age groups. 59.3% of Instagram's loyal fans have income less than 10,000 baht, this is in line with their age.

When looking at Lazada, the contrast of gender is not as strong as other brands of online shopping platform, 52.7% female against 41.8% of male. Age group that takes the biggest part is 36-45 years old group (29%). In terms of monthly income, 34.5% of Lazada's loyal fans have other 35,000 Baht, this is the highest percentage but yet not overwhelming, 29.1% of them income are between 20,000 and 35,000 Baht and 21.8% are between 10,000 and 20,000 Baht.

Finally, for loyal online shopper of Line, female consists 63%, distribution of age group is relatively even with the highest percentage in age between 18 and 25 years old, second highest percentage is 29% in age between 36 and years old.

Above all these four brands, shopping frequency was not discovered to differ across brands. Most respondents for all brands reported to shop between one to three times per month.

5.2 Discussion

Product & Value and E-Loyalty

Product and value factor was found to significantly affect e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand. This discover is in line with Lin et al. (2011) in which product quality and fair price were discovered to positively affect online shoppers' satisfaction which will in turns lead to loyalty.

Product variability, product quality and price were the factors that affecting eloyalty, which famous brand availability of the online shopping platform was not found to be significantly related to e-loyalty. Product variability significantly affect Eloyalty, this can be explained by the purpose of internet shopping. Online shoppers seek convenience when they shop online, this include the possibility to gather as much as product information within as less time as possible. Therefore, if an online shopping platform offers a large variety of products, it can great help customer save time searching products. The significant effect of quality of product and price of product upon e-loyalty is easy to understand, after all, no matter in traditional market or online market, purchasing products with good quality and low price are always the constant aim of consumers. Insignificant relationship between famous brand availability and e-loyalty indicates that online shoppers do not care too much about whether the online shopping platform are carrying famous brands or not.

Web Design and E-Loyalty

Web Design factor was found to significantly affect e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand. This is in line with the findings in Wolfinbarger and Gilly (2003) that customers' evaluation of quality, satisfaction and loyalty towards e-retailers can be predicted by website design factors.

The dimensions of web design which significantly affect e-loyalty include: appealing layout and color, clearly demonstrated product information. Easy navigation was not found to have significant relationship with e-loyalty. The biggest difference between online shopping and conventional shopping is that consumers do not have direct contact with the products in online shopping environment. Consumers therefore can only judge the products or services from the appearance of the website and product information demonstrated on the website. This explains why layout and color as well as the clear demonstration of product information affects e-loyalty.

Technology and E-Loyalty

Website loading speed and efficient search engine which are dimensions of technology are both found to significantly affect e-loyalty, this finding verified the conclusion of Gummerus et al. (2004) that technology of the online shopping platform and online shopper's e-loyalty is related. Fast loading speed of the online shopping website and efficient search engine will improve customer experience by saving time for customer. Consumers are not likely to have a pleasant experience if they wait too long for a website to be loaded or if the search engine of the website always feedback to customer with irrelevant product.

Service Quality and E-Loyalty

The fact that all dimensions of service quality are found to be significantly related to e-loyalty indicates that online shopper's in Bangkok Thailand takes service quality of online shopping platform very seriously. This finding is in line with plenty of previous studies (Lin et al., 2016; Semeijn et al., 2005; Myunghee & Miyoung, 2017).

Easy order process, easy and flexible payment method, responsiveness, on time delivery and tracking information are the dimensions of service quality that e-retailers should pay attention to improve if they intent to make their customers loyal.

Security & Trust and E-Loyalty

Online shoppers in Bangkok Thailand also take security and trust very seriously as it is found that all dimensions of this factor are related to e-loyalty. Previous studies (Lee et al., 2000; Khan & Rahman, 2016) has drawn the same conclusion.

Online shopping platform therefore should have a third-party approval in order to increase their trustworthy, and improve the reliability of the electronic payment system as well as improve their measures to protect customers' private information.

Brand Promoting Activities and E-Loyalty

Among all dimensions of brand promoting factor, word of mouth from friends, electronic word of mouth from the internet and virtual community were found to significantly affect e-loyalty which another dimension media exposure was not found to be significantly related to e-loyalty. This indicates that opinions and advices from friends or gathered from internet play more important roles in predicting online shoppers' loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand, meanwhile the results show media exposure cannot significantly affect e-loyalty. Therefore, an online shopping platform should pay high attention in building a good reputation in the market.

5.3 Recommendation for Managerial Implication

From the above discussion of the findings and conclusions of this study, first of all the profiles of loyal online shoppers for four different online shopping platforms: Facebook, Instagram, Lazada and Line were drawn, the profiles reveals the main characteristics of the loyal customers of different online shopping platforms. Eretailers who sell their products on these four platforms can take advantage of these characteristics to make up their business strategies in order to retain their customers.

Secondly, the findings of this research reveal the factors that affect online shoppers' e-loyalty towards the online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand, all practitioners in e-commerce business in Thailand who wish to increase the level of loyalty of their customers are recommended to use the findings of these research to improve their existing practice or make up some new measures to retain their customers.

For example, layout and color of the e-commerce website should be adjust to be attractive according to the perception of Thai people; functions, specifications or description of products or services should be made as clear as possible; service quality can be improve in the perspective of making the ordering process more simple, offering more options for payment, improving the responsiveness of customers service staffs, optimizing fulfillment process to guarantee on time delivery and building up a tracking system to feedback real time delivery status to customer; and so on so forth.

5.4 Recomendation for Further Research

This paper studied the factors affecting online shopper's e-loyalty towards online shopping platform in Bangkok Thailand. The limitation of this study is that it focused on Business to Consumer model of e-commerce market with the territory of Thailand. Future research can be extended to study Business to Business model or Consumers to Consumers model of e-commerce market, or study the e-loyalty in other countries.

In the meantime, this study took a cross sectional method to study the e-loyalty at a certain period of time. Future research can consider to use longitudinal method to study e-loyalty over different periods of time and see if the level of e-loyalty will vary via time.

Finally, this study did not separate the PC end online shoppers and mobile phone online shopper, however, there could be difference between these two kinds of online shoppers, and the factors affecting their loyalty level could be different as well. Future studies are suggested to focus on mobile phone online shopper as it has already become a new trend to shop on mobile phone.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Aaker, D. A. (2010). Marketing research. Hoboken, New Jersey: Wiley.

- Afsar, A., Nasiri, Z. and Zadeh, M. O. (2013). E-loyalty Model in e-Commerce. *Mediterranean Journal of Social Sciences*, 4(9), 547-553.
- Alam, S. and Yasin, N. M. (2010). What factors influence online brand trust: evidence from online tickets buyers in Malaysia. *Journal of Theoretical and Applied Electronic Commerce Research*, 5(3), 78-89.
- Alexandris, K., Douka, S., Papadopoulos, P. and Kaltsatou, A. (2008). Testing the role of service quality on the development of brand associations and brand loyalty. *Managing Service Quality: An International Journal, 18*(3), 239-254.
- Amadae, S.M. (2016). *Rational choice theory*. Retrieved from https://www.britannica.com/topic/rational-choice-theory
- Anderson, E. W., Fornell, C., & Lehmann, D. R. (1994). Customer satisfaction, market share, and profitability: Findings from Sweden. *Journal of Marketing*, 58(3), 44–53.
- Anderson, R. E. (1973). Consumer dissatisfaction: The effect of disconfirmed expectancy on perceived product performance. *Journal of Marketing Research*, 10(1), 38–44.
- Anderson, R. E., & Srinivasan, S. S. (2003). E-satisfaction and e-loyalty: A contingency framework. *Psychology & Marketing*, 20(2), 123–128.

- Azam, A. (2015). Investigation of psychological dimensions of trust on e-loyalty. *Journal of Islamic Marketing*, 6(2), 224-249.
- Bagozzi, R. P., Gopinath, M., & Nyer, P. U. (1999). The role of emotions in marketing. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, 27(2), 184–206.
- Bass, F. (1974). The Theory of Stochastic Preference and Brand Switching. *Journal of Marketing Research, 11*, 1-20.
- Bayaga, A. (2010). Multinomial Logistic Regression: Usage and Application in Risk. Journal of applied quantitative methods, 5(2), 288-297.
- Becerra, E.P. and Korgaonkar, P.K. (2011). Effects of trust beliefs on consumers' online intentions. *European Journal of Marketing*, *45*(6), 936-962.
- Bienstock, C.C. and Royne, M.B. (2010). Technology acceptance and satisfaction with logistics services. *International Journal of Logistics Management*, 21(2), 271-292.
- Blut, M., Evanschitzky, H., Vogel, V., & Ahlert, D. (2007). Switching Barriers in the Four-Stage Loyalty Model. In G. Fitzsimons, & V. Morwitz, NA - Advances in Consumer Research Volume 34, eds (pp. 726-734). Duluth, MN: Association for Consumer Research.
- Bryman, A. & Bell, E. (2011). *Business Research Methods. 3rd edn.* New York: Oxford University Press Inc.
- Buchalis, D. (2004). E- airlines: Strategic and tactical use of ICTs in the airline industry. *Information and management, 41*, 805-825.

- Buttle, F. and Burton, J. (2002). Does service failure influence customer loyalty? *Journal of Consumer Behaviour, 1*(3), 217-227.
- Buzzell, R. D., & Gale, B. T. (1987). The PIMS principles: Linking strategy to performance. London: Collier Macmillan.
- Caruana, A. and Ewing, M.T. (2010). How corporate reputation, quality, and value influence online loyalty. *Journal of Business Research*, 63(9-10), 1103-1110.
- Chang, H., Wang, W-H. & Yang, W-Y. (2009). The impact of e-service quality, customer satisfaction and loyalty on e-marketing: Moderating effect of perceived value. *Total Quality Management*, 20(4), 423–443.
- Chaudhuri, A. and Holbrook, M. B. (2001). The Chain of Effects from Brand Trust and Brand Affect to Brand Performance: The Role of Brand Loyalty. *Journal of Marketing*, 65(2), 81-93.
- Chen, C. Y. (2006). The effect of online store images and risk perception on internet purchase intention. *Fu Jen Chatholic University*.
- Chiang, K. P. and Dholakia, R.R. (2003). Factors Driving Consumer Intention to Shop Online: An Empirical Investigation. *Journal of Consumer Psychology*, *13*(1), 177-183.
- Chiou, J.S. (2004). The antecedents of consumers' loyalty toward Internet Service Providers. *Information & Management, 41*, 685-695.

- Chiou, W.C., Lin, C.C. and Perng, C. (2010). A strategic framework for website evaluation based on a review of the literature from 1995-2006. *Information & Management*, 47(5-6), 282-290.
- Cho, N. and Park, S. (2001). Development of electronic commerce user-consumer satisfaction index (ECUSI) for Internet shopping. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 101(8), 400-406.
- Christodoulides, G. and Michaelidou, N. (2010). Shopping motives as antecedents of e-satisfaction and e-loyalty. *Journal of Marketing Management, 27*(1-2), 181-197.
- Corstjens, M. & Lal, R. (2000). Building Store Loyalty through Store Brands. *Journal* of Marketing Research, 37(3), 281-292.
- Cristoal, E., Flavian, C., and Guinaliu, M. (2007). Perceived e-service quality: Measurement validity and effects on consumer satisfaction and website loyalty. *Managing Service Quality*, 17(3), 317-340.
- Cronbach, L. J. (1951). Coefficient alpha and the internal structure of tests. *Psychometrika*, 16, 297-334.
- Cyr, D., Kindra, G. S. and Dash, S. (2008). Web site design, trust, satisfaction and e loyalty: the Indian experience. *Online Information Review*, *32*(6), 773-790.
- Dai, H., Salam, A.F. and King, R. (2008). Service Convenience and Relational Exchange in Electronic Mediated Environment: An Empirical Investigation.

Paper presented at the 29th International Conference on Information Systems (p. 63). Paris, France: (ICIS 2008).

- Deitel, H., Deitel, P., & Steinbuhler, K. (2001). *e-Business and e-Commerce*. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice-Hall.
- DeLone, W. H., & McLean, E. R. (2004). Measuring e-commerce success: Applying the DeLone & McLean information systems success model. *International Journal of Electronic Commerce*, 9, 31–47.
- Department of Provicial Administration. (2016). จำนวนประชากรแยกรายอายุ กรุงเทพมหานคร. Retrieved from: http://stat.dopa.go.th/stat/statnew/upstat_age_disp.php
- Dick, A.S. and Basu, K. (1994). Customer Loyalty: Toward an Integrated Conceptual Framework. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science, 22*((Winter)), 99-113.
- Dillman, D. (2007). Mail and Internet Surveys: The Tailored Design Method (2nd edn). Hoboken, New Jersey: Wiley.
- Doney, P.M. and Cannon, J.P. (1997). An Examination of the Nature of Trust in Buyer-Seller Relationships. *Journal of Marketing*, *61*(2), 35-51.
- Dowling, G. & Uncles, M. (1997). Do Customer Loyalty Programs Really Work? Sloan Management Review, 38(4), 71-83.
- Durlauf, S. N. and Blume, L. E. (2008). rationality. In L. E. Blume, *The New Palgrave Dictionary of Economics (2nd edn.)*. UK: Palgrave Macmillan.

- ETDA. (2016). *Value of E-Commerce Survey in Thailand 2016*. Retrieved from https://www.etda.or.th/publishing-detail/value-of-e-commerce-survey-2016.htm
- Fink, A. (2003). How to Ask Survey Questions (2nd edn). Thousand Oaks: Sage.
- Flavián, C., Guinalíu, M. and Gurrea, R. (2006). The role played by perceived usability, satisfaction and consumer trust on website loyalty. *Information & Management*, 43(1), 1-14.
- Fornell, C. (1992). A National Customer Satisfaction Barometer: The Swedish Experience. *Journal of Marketing*, 56(1), 6-21.
- Fournier, S. and Mick, D.G. (1999). Rediscovering Satisfaction. *Journal of Marketing*, 63(4), 5-23.
- Gefen, D. (2002). Customer loyalty in e-commerce. Journal of the Association for Information Systems, 3(1), 27-51.
- Gefen, D. and Silver, M. (1999). Lessons Learned from the Successful Adoption of an ERP system. Proceedings of the 5th International Conference of the Decision Sciences Institute, (pp. 1054-1057). Athens, Greece.
- Gefen, D., Karahanna, E., and Straub, D.W. (2003). Inexperience and experience with online stores: The importance of TAM and trust. *IEEE transaction on engineering management*, 50, 307- 321.
- Ghauri, P. N., & Grønhaug, K. (2005). *Research methods in business studies: A practical guide*. Pearson Education.

- Gommans, M., Krishnan, K. S. & Scheffold, K.B. (2001). From Brand Loyalty to E-Loyalty: A Conceptual Framework. *Journal of Economic and Social Research*, 3(1), 43-58.
- Goode, M.M.H. and Harris, L.C. (2007). Online behavioural intentions: an empirical investigation of antecedents and moderators. *European Journal of Marketing*, 41(5-6), 512-536.
- Gounaris, S., Dimitriadis, S. and Stathakopoulos, V. (2010). An examination of the effects of service quality and satisfaction on customers' behavioral intentions in e-shopping. *Journal of Services Marketing*, *24*(2), 142-156.
- Greene, W. H. (2012). *Econometric Analysis (Seventh edn.)*. Boston: Pearson Education.
- Gummerus, J., Liljander, V., Pura, M. and Van Riel, A. (2004). Customer loyalty to content-based. *Journal of Services Marketing*, *18*(3), 175-86.
- Ha, Y. and Im, H. (2012). Role of web site design quality in satisfaction and word of mouth generation. *Journal of Service Management*, 23(1), 79-96.
- Han, H. and Ryu, K. (2009). The Roles of the Physical Environment, Price
 Perception, and Customer Satisfaction in Determining Customer Loyalty in
 the Restaurant Industry. *Journal of Hospitality & Tourism Research*, 33(4),
 487-510.

- Herington, C., & Weaven, S. (2007). Can banks improve customer relationships with high quality online services? *Managing Service Quality: An International Journal, 17*(4), Managing Service Quality: An International Journal.
- HILA LUDIN, I. H., & CHENG, B. L. (2014). Factors Influencing CustomerSatisfaction and E-Loyalty: Online Shopping Environment among the YoungAdults. *Management Dynamics in the Knowledge Economy*, 2(3), 462-471.
- Hosmer, L. T. (1995). Trust: The Connecting Link between Organizational Theory and Philosophical Ethics. *The Academy of Management Review*, 20(2), 379-403.
- Houston, R. W., and Taylor, G. K. (1999). Consumer perceptions of CPA
 WebTrustSM assurances: Evidence of an expectation gap. *International Journal of Auditing*, 3(2), 89-105.
- Hsu, M.-H., Chang, C.-M., Chu, K.-K., & Lee, Y.-J. (2014). Determinants of repurchaseintention in online group-buying: The perspectives of DeLone & McLean ISsuccess model and trust. *Computers in Human Behavior, 36*, 234– 245.

Jacob, J. and Chestnut R.W. (1978). Brand Loyalty. New York: John Wiley & Sons.

Janson, M. & Cecez-Kecmanovic, D. (2005). Making sense of e-commerce as social action. *Information Technology & People, 18*(4), 311-342.

- Jarvenpaa, S. L., and Todd, P. A. (1996). Consumer reactions to electronic shopping on the World Wide Web. *International Journal of Electronic Commerce, 1*(2), 59-88.
- Jiang, P., & Rosenbloom, B. (2005). Customer intention to return online: price perception, attribute-level performance, and satisfaction unfolding over time. *European Journal of Marketing*, 39(1/2), 150-174.
- Johnson, P. & Clark, M. (2006). Business and Management Research Methodologies. London: Sage.
- Kahneman, D. and Tversky, A. (1979). Prospect Theory: An Analysis of Decision Under Risk. *Econometrica*, 47(2), 263-291.
- Kalyanaram, G. and Little, J.D.C. (1994). An Empirical Analysis of Latitude of Price
 Acceptance in Consumer Package Goods. *Journal of Consumer Research*, 21(3), 408–419.
- Kassim, N. M. and Ismail, S. (2009). Investigating the complex drivers of loyalty in e - commerce settings. *Measuring Business Excellence*, *13*(1), 56-71.
- Khan, I. and Rahman, Z. (2014). Shopping centre customer service: creating customer satisfaction and loyalty. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning*, *32*(4), 528-548.
- Khristianto, W., Kertahadi, I., and Suyadi, I. (2012). The influence of information, system and service on customer satisfaction and loyalty in online shopping.
 International Journal of Academic Research, 4(2), 28-32.

- Kim, D. and Benbasat, I. (49-64). Trust-Related Arguments in Internet Stores: A
 Framework for Evaluation. *Journal of Electronic Commerce Research*, 4(2), 2003.
- Kim, D.J., Ferrin, D.L. and Rao, H.R. (2008). A trust-based consumer decisionmaking model in electronic commerce: the role of trust, perceived risk, and their antecedents. *Decision Support Systems*, 44(2), 544-564.
- Kim, J., and Lennon, S.J. (2013). Effects of reputation and website quality on online consumers' emotion, perceived risk and purchase intention: based on the stimulus-organism-response model. *Journal of Research in Interactive Marketing*, 7(1), 33-56.
- Kim, J., Jin, B. and Swinney, J.L. (2009). The role of etail quality, e-satisfaction and e-trust in online loyalty development process. *Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services*, 16(4), 239-247.
- Kim, W. and Lee, H.Y. (2004). Comparison of web service quality between online travel agencies and online travel suppliers. *Journal of Travel and Tourism Marketing*, 17(2-3), 105-116.
- Koufaris, M. and Hampton-Sosa, W. (2004). The development of initial trust in an online company by new customers. *Information & Management*, 41(3), 377-397.
- Kuhl, J. & Beckmann, J. (1985). Action control: From cognition to behavior. New York: Springer-Verlag.

- Kursunluoglu, E. (2014). Shopping centre customer service: creating customer satisfaction and loyalty. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning, 29*(3), 528-548.
- Lee, J., Kim, J. and Moon, J.Y. (2000). What makes Internet users visit cyber stores again? Key design factors for customer loyalty. *CHI Letters, 2*(1), 305-312.
- Lin, C. C., Wu, H. Y., & Chang, Y. F. (2011). The critical factors impact on online customer satisfaction. *Proceedia Computer Science*, 3, 276-281.
- Lin, Y., Luo, J., Cai, S.Q., Ma, S.H, Rong, K. (2016). Exploring the service quality in the e-commerce context: a triadic view. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 116(3), 388-415.
- Lu, J., Wang, L. and Hayes, L.A. (2012). How Do Technology Readiness, Platform Functionality and Trust Influence C2C User Satisfaction? *Journal of Electronic Commerce Research*, 13(1), 50-69.
- Luce, R. D. (1959). *Individual Choice Behavior: A Theoretical Analysis*. New York: John Wiley and Sons.
- Martı'nez-Ribes, J.M., de Borja, L. and Carvajal, P. (1999). Fidelizando clientes. Detectar y mantener al cliente leal, EADA Gestio'n. Gestio'n 2000, Barcelona.
- Mayer, R. C., Davis, J. H., & Schoorman, F. D. (1995). An integrative model of organizational trust. Academy of Management Review, 20, 709–734.

- McKnight, D.H., Choudhury, V. and Kacmar, C. (2002). Developing and Validating Trust Measures for E-Commerce: An Integrative Typology. *Information Systems Research*, 13(3), 334-359.
- Mentzer, J.T., Flint, D.J. and Hult, G.T.M. (2001). Logistics service quality as a segmentcustomized. *Journal of Marketing*, 65(4), 82-104.
- Milne, G.R. and Boza, M. E. (1999). Trust and concern in consumers' perceptions of marketing information management practices. *Journal of Interactive Marketing*, 13(1), 5-24.
- Mittal, V. & Kamakura, W. (2001). Satisfaction, Repurchase Intent, and Repurchase Behavior: Investigating the Moderating Effect of Customer Characteristics.
 Journal of Marketing Research, 38(1), 131-143.
- Moorman, C. Z. (1992). Relationships between providers and users of market research: The dynamics of trust. *Journal of Marketing Research*, *29*(3), 314–329.
- Myunghee, M.J and Miyoung, J. (2017). Customers' perceived website service quality and itseffects on e-loyalty. *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management, 29*(1), 438-457.
- Neuman, W. (2003). Social Research Methods-Qualitative and Quantitative approaches, 5 edn. Boston: Pearson Education.
- Nguyen, TH. D., Barrett, N. J. and Miller, K. E. (2011). Brand loyalty in emerging markets. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning*, *29*(3), 222-232.
- Oliva, T. & Oliver, R. (1992). A Catastrophe Model for Developing Service Satisfaction Strategies. *Journal of Marketing*, *56*(3), 83-96.
- Oliver, R. L. (1980). A Cognitive Model of the Antecedents and Consequences of Satisfaction Decisions. *Journal of Marketing Research*, *17*(4), 460-469.
- Oliver, R.L. (1997). Satisfaction: A Behavioral Perspective on the Consumer. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill.
- Oliver, R.L. (1999). Whence Consumer Loyalty? *Journal of Marketing, 63*(Special Issue), 33-44.
- Parasuraman, A., Zeithaml, V. A., and Malhotra, A. (2005). E-S-Qual: a multipleitem scale for assessing electronic service quality. *Journal of Service Research*, 7(3), 213-233.
- Patterson, P. G. (1993). Expectations and product performance as determinants of satisfaction for a high-involvement purchase. *Psychology & Marketing*, 10(5), 449–465.
- Pratminingsih, S.A., Lipuringtyas, C., and Rimenta, T. (2013). Factors Influencing Customer Loyalty Toward Online Shopping. *International Journal of Trade, Economics and Finance, 4*(3), 104-110.
- Rafiq, M. and Jaafar, H.S. (2007). Measuring customers' perceptions of logistics service quality of 3PL service providers. *Journal of Business Logistics*, 28(2), 159-175.

- Reichheld, F. F. (1996). *The Loyalty Effect: The Hidden Force Behind Growth, Profits, and Lasting Value.* New York: Harvard Business School Press.
- Reichheld, F.F. and Sasser, W.E. (1990). Zero defections: quality comes to services. *Harvard Business Review*, 68(5), 105-111.
- Reichheld, F.F. and Schefter, P. (2000). E Loyalty: Your secret weapon on the web. *Havard Business Review*, 78(4), 105-113.
- Ribbink, D., Allard, C.R.V.R, Liljander, V., Streukens, S. (2004). Comfort your online customer: quality, trust and loyalty on the internet. *Managing Service Quality: An International Journal, 14*(6), 446-456.
- Robson, C. (2002). Real World Research (2nd edn). Oxford: Blackwell.
- Rovinelli, R. J., & Hambleton, R. K. (1977). On the use of content specialists in the assessment of criterion-referenced test item validity. *Dutch Journal of Educational Research*, 2, 49-60.
- Russell, G. J. (2014). Brand Choice Models. In S. A. Neslin, & R. S. Winer, *The History of Marketing Science* (pp. 19-46). Hanover, MA: Now Publishers.
- Sambandam,R. and Lord, K. A. (1995). Switching Behavior in Automobile Markets: A Consideration-Sets Model. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, 23(1), 57–65.
- Sanchez Torres, J.A. and Arroyo-Cañada, F.J. (2017). Building brand loyalty in ecommerce. *Journal of Fashion Marketing and Management: An International Journal, 21*(1), 103-114.

- Santos, J. (2003). E service quality: a model of virtual service quality dimensions. *Managing Service Quality: An International Journal, 13*(3), 233-246.
- Saunders, M., Lewis, P., and Thornhill, A. (2009). *Research methods for business students (5th edition)*. UK: Pearson.
- Saura, I. G., Francés, D. S., Contrí, G.B. and Blasco, M. F. (2008). Logistics service quality: a new way to loyalty. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 108(5), 650-668.
- Schultz, D. (2000). Customer/Brand Loyalty in an Interactive Marketplace. *Journal of Advertising Research*, 40(3), 41-53.
- Sekaran, U. and Bougie, R. (2014). *Research Methods for Business, A Skill-Building Approach (6th edn)*. Chichester: John Wiley & Son Ltd.
- Semeijn, J., Allard C.R.V.R., Marcel J.H.V.B., Streukens, S. (2005). E services and offline fulfilment: how e - loyalty is created. *Managing Service Quality: An International Journal*, 15(2), 182-194.
- Simon, H. A. (1969). The Sciences of the Artificial. Cambridge, Mass.: M.I.T. Press.
- Simon, M. (2011). Assumptions, limitations, delimitations. Retrieved June 28, 2017, from http://dissertationrecipes.com/wpcontent/uploads/2011/04/AssumptionslimitationsdelimitationsX.pdf
- Simon, M. K., and Goes, J. (2013). Assumptions, Delimitations and Scope of the Study. Retrieved June 28, 2017, from www.dissertationrecipes.com: http://www.dissertationrecipes.com/wpcontent/uploads/2011/04/Assumptions

- Singh, J. and Sirdeshmukh, D. . (2000). Agency and Trust Mechanisms in Consumer Satisfaction and Loyalty Judgments. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, 28(1), 150-167.
- Sivakumar, K. and Raj, S. P. (1997). Quality Tier Competition: How Price Change Influences Brand Choice and Category Choice. *Journal of Marketing*, 61(3), 71–85.
- Smith, E. R. (2000). E-Loyalty. New York: Harper Collins.
- Srinivasan, S. S., Anderson, R., and Ponnavolu, K. (2002). Customer Loyalty in Ecommerce: An Exploration of its Antecedents and Consequences. *Journal of Retailing*, 27, 279-295.
- Stamenkov, G. and Dika, Z. (2015). A sustainable e-service quality model. *Journal of Service*, *25*(4), 414-442.
- Strauss, J. and Frost, R. (2001). E-Marketing. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall,.
- Swaid, S.I. and Wigand, R.T. (2009). Measuring the quality of e-service: scale development and initial validation. *Journal of Electronic Commerce Research*, 10(1), 13-28.
- Taylor, S. A. and Hunter, G. (2003). An exploratory investigation into the antecedents of satisfaction, brand attitude, and loyalty within the (B2B) eCRM industry. *Journal of Consumer Satisfaction, Dissatisfaction and Complaining Behaviour*, 16-19.

- Thurstone, L.L. (1927). A Law of Comparative Judgment. *Psychology Review, 34*, 273-286.
- Train, K. (2003). *Qualitative Choice Analysis: Theory, Econometrics, and an Application to Automobile Demand.* Cambridge, Mass.: M.I.T. Press.
- Tversky, A. (1972). Choice By Elimination. *Journal of Mathematical Psychology*, 9, 341-367.
- Uncles, M. D., Dowling, G.D. and Hammond, K. (2003). Customer Loyalty and Customer Loyalty Programs. *Journal of Consumer Marketing*, 20(4), 294– 317.
- Valvi, C. A. and West, D. C. (2013). E-LOYALTY IS NOT ALL ABOUT TRUST, PRICE ALSO MATTERS: EXTENDING EXPECTATION-CONFIRMATION THEORY IN BOOKSELLING WEBSITES. Journal of Electronic Commerce Research, 14(1), 99-123.
- Verhagen, T. and van Dolen, W. (2009). Online purchase intentions: A multi-channel store image perspective. *Information & Management, 46*(2), 77-82.
- Wolfinbarger, M. and Gilly, M.C. (2003). eTailQ: dimensionalizing, measuring and predicting etail quality. *Journal of Retailing*, *79*(3), 183-198.
- Xiao, L., Guo, Z.X., D'Ambra, J., Fu, B. (2016). Building loyalty in e-commerce: Towards a multidimensional trust-based framework for the case of China. *Program*(50), 431-461.

- Yamane, T. (1967). *Statistics, An Introductory Analysis (2nd edn)*. New York : Harper and Row.
- Yellott, J. I. (1977). The relationship between luce's choice axiom, thurstone's theory of comparative judgement, and the double exponential distribution. *Journal of Mathematical Psychology*, 15, 109–144.
- Yun, Z.S. and Good, L.K. (2007). Developing customer loyalty from e tail store image attributes. *Managing Service Quality: An International Journal*, 17(1), 4-22.
- Zeithaml, V.A. (2000). Service quality, profitability, and the economic worth of customers: what we need to learn. *Academy of Marketing Science*, 28(1), 67-85.
- Zeithaml, V.A., Berry, L.L. and Parasuraman, A. (1996). The behavioral consequences of service quality. *Journal of Marketing*, *60*, 31-46.
- Zheng, L., Favier, M., Huang, P. and Coat, F. (2012). Chinese Consumer Perceived Risk and Risk Relievers in E-Shopping for Clothing. *Journal of Electronic Commerce Research*, 13(3), 255-274.
- Ziaullah, M., Yi, F. and Akhter, S. N. (2014). E-Loyalty: The influence of product quality and delivery services on e-trust and e-satisfaction in China. *International Journal of Advancements in Research & Technology, 3*(10), 20-31.



Appendix A: Questionnaire

QUESTIONNAIRE

1. Have you ever done online shopping before?

[]Yes []No

2. What is the online shopping website or platform that you are loyal to?

3. Which of the following product category do you buy from the above website most often?

- Books	- Music/games/Film	- Consumer Electronics
- Computer & Office Supply	- Home/Garden/ Pets	- Toys/children/baby
- Clothes/shoes/watches/bags	- Sports/Outdoors	- Grocery/Health/Beauty
- DIY/tools/car	- Food	- Ticket
- Others		

4. The following factors affect my loyalty level towards the above loyal website of mine:

Product & Value: Such as Large product choices, competitive price, famous brand availability etc.

Web-Design: Such as Web layout & color, navigation, clear demonstrated product information etc.

Technology: Such as fast page load, server stability, effective search function etc.

Service Quality: Such as easy order process, optional payment method, fast product delivery etc.

Security & Trust: Such as Third-party approval, privacy protection, product return policy etc.

Brand Promoting: Such as Media exposure, good reputation, positive world of mouth etc.

	Strongly	Somewhat	Neutral	Somewhat	Strongly
	Disagree	Disagree		Agree	Agree
Web-Design	1	2	3	4	5
Technology	<i>L</i> í		3	4	5
Product & Value	1	2	3	4	5
Service Quality	1	2	3	4	5
Security & Trust	1	2	3	4	5
Brand Promoting	1	2	3	4	5

5. Please indicate the degree of agreement with each of the following statements by circling the appropriate number based on the following scales:

Strongly	Somewhat	Neutral	Somewhat	C	tror	ماير					
Subligiy	Somewhat Neutral Somewhat Strongly										
Disagree	Disagree		Agree	A	Agre	e					
1	2	3	4	5	;						
5.1 Web Design			I	_							
5.1.1 The layout and color of this online shopping website 1 2 3 4 5											
is appealing to 1	ne.										
5.1.2 This website has easy navigation, I can find my 1 2 3 4 5											
interested produ	ict very easily.										
5.1.3 The produc	t information dem	onstrated on this	3	1	2	3	4	5			
5.1.3 The product information demonstrated on this 1 2 3 4 5 Website is clear enough for me to make decision											
5.2 Technology											
5.2.1 The loading	g speed of the web	osite is quick		1	2	3	4	5			

5.3 Product and value

5.2.2 Search engine of this website is effective

5.3.1 This website offers a wide range of products	1	2	3	4	5
			-		-

1 2 3 4 5

5.3.2 The products I buy from this website have	1	2	3	4	5
good quality					
5.3.3 The price of products sold on this website are	1	2	3	4	5
competitive compared with other websites					
5.3.4 There are lots of famous brand available in	1	2	3	4	5
this online shopping website					
5.4 Security & Trust					
5.4.1 This website has third-party approval which	1	2	3	4	5
makes me feel safe to shop and pay online.					
5.4.2 I feel secure about the electronic payment system	1	2	3	4	5
of this company					
5.4.3 This online shopping website is worth to trust	1	2	3	4	5
5.4.4 I feel secure when providing private information	1	2	3	4	5
to this online company					
5.5 Service Quality					
5.5.1 The ordering process of this website is easy	1	2	3	4	5
5.5.2 It is easy for me to pay for what I buy from this	1	2	3	4	5
website because it offers various payment methods					

(credit card/internet banking/mobile banking/pay at

physical store such as 7-11 etc.) 5.5.3 This website response to my request quickly 5.5.4 Ordered product will always be send to me on time as the website has promised 5.5.5 This website offers delivery tracking information which is timely and updated **5.6 Brand Promoting** 5.6.1 I have a good impression of the website because of Δ advertisement of it on TV/magazine/social media 5.6.2 People I know recommend this website to me 5.6.3 I have read a lot of positive comment about this website from the internet and social media. 5.6.4 I can freely make comments or exchange ideas with other online shoppers in the virtual community (website comments area) or social media communities (fan page on Facebook /line groups) built by this website.

6. Please answer the following questions about demographic information

6. 1 What is your Gender?

Female	Male		LGBT		
6.2 What is your Age					
under 18		-29	_30-35	35-45	
45 up					
	11 7 0				
6.3 What is your mont	nly income?				
0-10,000 baht					
0-10,000 bain					
10,001-20,000 ba	aht				
20,001-35,000 ba	aht				
More than 35,00	l baht				
6.4 What is your Educ	ation level?				
High School	Bachelor Deg	gree	_Master Degre	ee Do	octor
Degree					

6.5 How often do you usually shopping online?

____Less than 1 time per month ____1 time per month ____2-3 times per 1 month _____

6.6 What is your Marital status?



Appendix B: Result of	Validity Test
-----------------------	---------------

No.	Ex	pert	1	Ex	pert 2	2	Exp	oert (3	Ex	pert	4	Ex	pert	5	Total	IOC/N	Data
	1	0	(1)	1	0	(1)	1	0	(1)	1	0	(1)	1	0	(1)	Scores		Analysis
1	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
2	1			1				0		1			1			4	0.8	Acceptable
3	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
4	1			1				0		1			1			4	0.8	Acceptable
5.1.1			(1)	1			1			1			1			3	0.6	Acceptable
5.1.2	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.1.3	1			1			1		1	1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.2.1	1			1			1	0		1] /	\mathbf{V}	1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.2.2		0		1				0		1			1			3	0.6	Acceptable
5.3.1	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.3.2	1					(1)	1			1			1		\mathbf{O}	3	0.6	Acceptable
5.3.3	1			1				0			0		1	(3	0.6	Acceptable
5.3.4	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.4.1	1			1				0		1			1			4	0.8	Acceptable
5.4.2	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.4.3	1			1			1			1			1		Y	5	1.0	Acceptable
5.4.4	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.5.1	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.5.2	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.5.3	1			1			1			1			1	O		5	1.0	Acceptable
5.5.4	1			1			1	λ		1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.5.5	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.6.1		0		1				0		1			1			3	0.6	Acceptable
5.6.2	1			1			1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.6.3	1	1		1	1		1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
5.6.4		0		1	1			0		1			1			3	0.6	Acceptable
6.1		0		1	1		1		1	1			1	1		4	0.8	Acceptable
6.2	1			1	1		1			1			1	1		5	1.0	Acceptable
6.3	1	1		1	1		1	1		1	1		1	1		5	1.0	Acceptable
6.4		0		1	1		1			1			1			4	0.8	Acceptable
6.5	1			1	1		1			1			1			5	1.0	Acceptable
6.6		0		1	1		1			1			1		1	4	0.8	Acceptable

Appendix C: Result of Reliability Test

1. Reliability of All Parts

Reliability Statistics

Cronbac	N of
h's Alpha	Items
.904	4

Item-Total Statistics

	Scale	Scale	Correcte	Cronbac
	Mean if Item	Variance if	d Item-Total	h's Alpha if
	Deleted	Item Deleted	Correlation	Item Deleted
Web1-layout and color	81.321	170.078	.756	.950
Web2-navigation	80.857	166.794	.799	.949
Web3-Info Quality	81.036	168.258	.825	.949
Tec1-Loading Speed	81.107	169.136	.746	.950
Tec2-Searching	81.000	171.037	.637	.951
Effectiveness	81.000	1/1.03/	.037	.931
Pro1-Product	80.964	170.999	.693	.951
Variability	80.704	170.777	.075	.751
Pro2-Product Quality	81.179	173.560	.587	.952
Pro3-Price	81.000	169.259	.716	.950
I		I	I	l I

Pro4-Famous Brand	81.286	177.619	.320	.956
Avalibility	61.200	1/7.019	.320	.930
Sec1-Third Party	81.071	172 476	(25	051
Appoval	81.071	173.476	.635	.951
Sec2-Secured Payment	80.821	174.448	.624	.952
Sec3-Trustworthy	81.071	175.180	.548	.952
Sec4-Privacy Protection	81.036	173.295	.665	.951
Ser1-Ease of Use	81.036	167.665	.769	.950
Ser2-Various Payment	81.000	171.407	.693	.951
Ser3-Responsiveness	80.964	169.517	.764	.950
Ser4-On Time Delivery	81.071	168.439	.755	.950
Ser5-Tracking Info	81.250	165.306	.738	.950
Bra1-Media Exposure	81.393	171.136	.692	.951
Bra2-WOM	81.464	167.147	.648	.952
Bra3-E WOM	81.286	167.841	.748	.950
Bra4-Community	81.786	173.063	.600	.952

2. Reliability of Web Design factors

Reliability Statistics

Cronbac	N of
h's Alpha	Items
.861	3

	Scale	Scale	Correcte	Cronbac
	Mean if Item	Variance if	d Item-Total	h's Alpha if
	Deleted	Item Deleted	Correlation	Item Deleted
Web1-layout and color	8.033	3.275	.678	.859
Web2-navigation	7.500	2.741	.800	.745
Web3-Info Quality	7.733	2.685	.745	.801

3. Reliability of Technology factors

Reliability Statistics

Cronbac	N of
h's Alpha	Items
.866	2

Item-Total Statistics

	Scale	Scale	Correcte	Cronbac
	Mean if Item	Variance if	d Item-Total	h's Alpha if
	Deleted	Item Deleted	Correlation	Item Deleted
Tec1-Loading Speed	3.933	1.099	.763	

Tec2-Searching				
Effectiveness	3.833	1.040	.763	

4. Reliability of Product and Value factors

Reliability Statistics



Item-Total Statistics

	Scale	Scale	Correcte	Cronbac
	Mean if Item	Variance if	d Item-Total	h's Alpha if
	Deleted	Item Deleted	Correlation	Item Deleted
Pro1-Product	11.276	6.278	.414	.779
Variability	11.270	0.278	.414	.119
Pro2-Product Quality	11.621	5.244	.584	.698
Pro3-Price	11.414	4.537	.800	.573
Pro4-Famous Brand	11.724	5.135	.494	.754
Avalibility	11./24	3.133	.474	./34

5. Reliability of Security and Trust factors

Reliability Statistics

Cronbac	N of
h's Alpha	Items
.858	4

Item-Total Statistics

	Scale	Scale	Correcte	Cronbac
	Mean if Item	Variance if	d Item-Total	h's Alpha if
	Deleted	Item Deleted	Correlation	Item Deleted
Sec1-Third Party	12 172	2 022	(20)	950
Approval	12.172	3.933	.629	.850
Sec2-Secured Payment	11.931	3.924	.706	.818
Sec3-Trustworthy	12.172	3.648	.749	.799
Sec4-Privacy	12 120	2766	720	907
Protection	12.138	3.766	.730	.807

6. Reliability of Service Quality factors

Reliability Statistics

Cronbac	N of
h's Alpha	Items
.929	5

Item-Total Statistics

	Scale	Scale	Correcte	Cronbac
	Mean if Item	Variance if	d Item-Total	h's Alpha if
	Deleted	Item Deleted	Correlation	Item Deleted
Ser1-Ease of Use	15.500	13.569	.809	.914
Ser2-Various	15.400	15.145	.711	.932
Payment				
Ser3-Responsiveness	15.400	13.559	.856	.905
Ser4-On Time Delivery	15.500	13.086	.888	.899
Ser5-Tracking Info	15.667	12.575	.825	.913

7. Reliability of Brand Promoting factors

Reliability Statistics

Cronbac	N of
h's Alpha	Items
.871	4

Item-Total Statistics

Scale	Scale	Correcte	Cronbac
Mean if Item	Variance if	d Item-Total	h's Alpha if
Deleted	Item Deleted	Correlation	Item Deleted

Bra1-Media	10.200	7.752	.674	.857
Exposure	10.200	1.152	.074	.007
Bra2-WOM	10.333	5.747	.796	.811
Bra3-E WOM	10.100	6.507	.786	.810
Bra4-Community	10.567	7.495	.678	.854



BIODATA

Name – Lastname: Yi Mo

Address: 89/6, Moo 15, Bangkaew, Bangplee, Samutprakarn, 10540 Thailand.

Email: momojame@hotmail.com

Contact number: +66 83 9722 058

Educational Background: Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering

Major: Mechanical Engineering



Bangkok University

License Agreement of Dissertation/Thesis/ Report of Senior Project

Day ____ Month_____ Year

Mr./ Mrs./ Ms MO now living at Soi MOD 15 Street Sub-district BANG FAEW District BANGPLEE Province SAMUTPRAKARN Postal Code <u>54-1000</u> being a Bangkok University student, student ID 757020 2536 Degree level □ Bachelor Master □ Doctorate Program M.B.A. Department School Graduate School hereafter referred to as "the licensor"

Bangkok University 119 Rama 4 Road, Klong-Toey, Bangkok 10110 hereafter referred to as "the licensee"

Both parties have agreed on the following terms and conditions:

1. The licensor certifies that he/she is the author and possesses the exclusive rights of dissertation/thesis/report of senior project entitled

FACTORS AFFECTING	E-LOYALTY TOWARDS ON LINE	
SHOPPING PLATFORM	BANGKOK THAILAND	

submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirement for $M \cdot B \cdot A$.

of Bangkok University (hereafter referred to as "dissertation/thesis/ report of senior project").

2. The licensor grants to the licensee an indefinite and royalty free license of his/her dissertation/thesis/report of senior project to reproduce, adapt, distribute, rent out the original or copy of the manuscript.

3. In case of any dispute in the copyright of the dissertation/thesis/report of senior project between the licensor and others, or between the licensee and others, or any other inconveniences in regard to the copyright that prevent the licensee from reproducing, adapting or distributing the manuscript, the licensor agrees to indemnify the licensee against any damage incurred.

This agreement is prepared in duplicate identical wording for two copies. Both parties have read and fully understand its contents and agree to comply with the above terms and conditions. Each party shall retain one signed copy of the agreement.

